#### POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DATE: October 4, 2023

TIME: 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY.

PAGE: AGENDA ITEMS

- 1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE
- 2. ANNOUNCEMENTS
  - (a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon.
  - (b) The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on October 11, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 1:30 pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338.
  - (c) The Polk Extension Service District will be meeting at 10:00 am on October 17, 2023. The meeting will be in the main conference room located on the first floor of 850 Main St Dallas OR 97338.
- 3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes)
- 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
- 5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM September 20, 2023
- 6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

#### **CONSENT CALENDAR**

- (a) Polk County Contract No. 23-190, Oregon Health Authority (Rosana Warren, Public Health)
- (b) Polk County Resolution No. 23-14, Polk County Personnel Rules (Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director)
- (c) O & C Litigation Payment
- (d) Polk County Contract No. 23-198, ODOT (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director)
- (e) New Job Specification and Wage, Emergency Management Coordinator (Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director)

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660.

**ADJOURNMENT** 

#### POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MINUTES September 20, 2023

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Pope were present.

Staff present:

Morgan Smith, County Counsel

Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director

#### 2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon.

The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 20, 2023 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338.

#### 3. COMMENTS

None.

#### 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION: COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED,

TO APPROVE THE AGENDA.

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.

## 5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF September 13, 2023

MOTION: COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED,

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF September 13, 2023.

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.

## 6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTION: COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED,

TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.

#### 7. HONORING JUDGE LUUKINEN

The Polk County Board of Commissioners and staff would like to offer their condolences to the family of the late Judge Charles Luukinen. Commissioner Pope read aloud a statement in regards to the recent passing of the Honorable Judge.

#### 8. RESOLUTION 23-13

Commissioner Mordhorst presented Polk County Resolution No. 23-13, in the matter of proclaiming Polk County's call for the repeal of the decriminalization provisions enacted pursuant to Oregon Ballot Measure 110, to the Board and staff and provided background information on what the resolution is about and the work that has gone into this resolution. Commissioner Gordon read aloud a prepared statement after Commissioner Mordhorst finished speaking.

MOTION: COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, TO APPROVE AND SIGN RESOLUTION NO. 23-13.

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.

#### 9. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE

Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director, is recommending the reclassification of a Civil Engineer I to a Civil Engineer II. Should the reclassification be approved, it would be retroactive to June 1, 2023 and will have an impact to the FY 23-24 budget of approximately \$9500.00 including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.

#### APPROVED BY CONSENSUS OF THE BOARD.

Jeff Havlin appeared before the board to make a public statement in regards to the drug paraphernalia that is all over in Downtown Portland, Oregon. He stated that he has housed a homeless person in the past and worked with CASA in Iowa. Mr. Havlin shared some background information with housing that person. Next Mr. Havlin shared his backstory while working with CASA in Iowa. Mr. Havlin stated he is pleased with adoption of Resolution No. 23-13. Commissioner Pope wanted to plug in that there was an article from the Salem Reporter stating that there is a potential recall on Measure 110 on the 2024 ballot. Commissioner Mordhorst made a comment in regards to the homelessness issue. There was some discussion about the proposed micro shelter in Dallas.

The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR:

- a) Polk County Contract No. 23-186, Central School District (Dana Goodale, Family & Community Outreach)
- Polk County Contract No. 23-188, Salem Health West Valley (Rosana Warren, Public Health)

There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting at 9:17 a.m.

Jeremy Gordon, Chair
Craig Pope, Commissioner
Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Minutes: Nicole Pineda Approved: October 4, 2023



## **CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET**

Staff Contact:	Ro	sana Warren	Phone Number (Ext):	2428		
Department:	Не	alth Services: Public Health	Consent Calendar Date:	September 27, 2023		
Contractor Nan	ne:	Oregon Health Authority				
Address:	63	5 Capitol Street NE, Room 350				
City, State, Zip:	Sa	ılem, OR 97301				
Effective Dates	- Fr	om: July 01, 2023	Through: June 30, 202	24		
Contract Amou	nt:	\$5,892.86				
Background:				1		
residents of the award may be r	The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority to provide Public Health Services to residents of the County by way of a grant. This contract is the initial award from the State. The grant award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal year to reflect changes to funds and/or programs that are made as part of the grant.					
Discussion:						
This Amendment 1 provides funding for PE 13 TPEP in the amount of \$5,892.86 as bridge funding for 7/1/23-9/30/23. No other changes noted.						
iscal Impact:						
The total for this amendment is \$5,892.86 The Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this funding.						
Recommendatio	n:					
It is recommended that Polk County sign amendment 1 to IGA 180027 with the Oregon Health Authority.						
Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:						
Name: Rosan	a W	arren	E-mail: hs.contracts@co.p	olk.or.us		
Name:			E-mail:			
Name:			E-mail:			

**Agreement #180027** 



# FIRST AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an alternate format, please send an e-mail to <u>dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us</u> or call 503-378-3486 (voice) or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format.

This First Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2023-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2023, (as amended the "Agreement"), is between the State of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority ("OHA") and Polk County, ("LPHA"), the entity designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Polk County. OHA and LPHA are each a "Party" and together the "Parties" to the Agreement.

## **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify and replace the Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) Financial Assistance Award set forth in Exhibit C of the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

#### **AGREEMENT**

- 1. This Amendment is effective on July 1, 2023, regardless of the date this amendment has been fully executed with signatures by every Party and when required, approved by the Department of Justice. However, payments may not be disbursed until the Amendment is fully executed.
- **2.** The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:
  - **a.** Exhibit C, Section 1 of the Agreement, entitled "Financial Assistance Award" for FY24 is hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment A, entitled "Financial Assistance Award (FY24)", attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment A must be read in conjunction with Section 3 of Exhibit C.
- 3. LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in Section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if made on the date hereof.
- 4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement.
- **5.** Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.
- 6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original.

## OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth below their respective signatures.

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY

## 7. Signatures.

Approved by:	:	
Name:	/for/ Nadia A. Davidson	
Title:	Director of Finance	
Date:		
POLK COUNT	TY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY	
Approved by:	:	
Printed Name	e:	
Title:		
Date:		
DEPARTMENT	T OF JUSTICE – APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY	
Finance Secti	rm group-approved by Steven Marlowe, Senior Assistant a ion, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Just approval in Agreement file.	
REVIEWED B	BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION	
Reviewed by:	:	
Name:	Rolonda Widenmeyer (or designee)	
Title:	Program Support Manager	
Date:		

## Attachment A Financial Assistance Award (FY24)

State of Oregon Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division				
1) Grantee	2) Issue Date	This Action		
Name: Polk County	Saturday, July 1, 2023	Amendment		
Street: 182 SW Academy, Suite 302		FY 2024		
City: Dallas	3) Award Period	-		
State: OR Zip: 97338-1900	From July 1, 2023 through J	From July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024		

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved					
Number	Program	Previous Award Balance	Increase / Decrease	Current Award Balance	
PE01-01	State Support for Public Health	\$24,872.25	\$0.00	\$24,872.25	
PE01-12	ACDP Infection Prevention Training	\$1,517.82	\$0.00	\$1,517.82	
PE10-02	Sexually Transmitted Disease (STD)	\$151,254.00	\$0.00	\$151,254.00	
PE12-01	Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEP)	\$21,283.25	\$0.00	\$21,283.25	
PE13	Tobacco Prevention and Education Prgram (TPEP)	\$2,750.00	\$5,892.86	\$8,642.86	
PE40-01	WIC NSA: July - September	\$55,416.00	\$0.00	\$55,416.00	
PE40-02	WIC NSA: October - June	\$166,250.00	\$0.00	\$166,250.00	
PE40-05	Farmer's Market	\$2,000.00	\$0.00	\$2,000.00	
PE42-03	MCAH Perinatal General Funds & Title XIX	\$3,251.00	\$0.00	\$3,251.00	
PE42-04	MCAH Babies First! General Funds	\$10,394.00	\$0.00	\$10,394.00	
PE42-06	MCAH General Funds & Title XIX	\$6,100.00	\$0.00	\$6,100.00	
PE42-11	MCAH Title V	\$34,599.00	\$0.00	\$34,599.00	
PE42-12	MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V	\$2,960.00	\$0.00	\$2,960.00	
PE42-13	Family Connects Oregon	\$50,000.00	\$0.00	\$50,000.00	
PE43-01	Public Health Practice (PHP) - Immunization Services	\$25,625.00	\$0.00	\$25,625.00	
PE44-01	SBHC Base	\$60,000.00	\$0.00	\$60,000.00	
PE44-02	SBHC - Mental Health Expansion	\$70,000.00	\$0.00	\$70,000.00	
PE46-05	RH Community Participation & Assurance of Access	\$24,234.80	\$0.00	\$24,234.80	
PE50	Safe Drinking Water (SDW) Program (Vendors)	\$12,678.00	\$0.00	\$12,678.00	
PE51-01	LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program Implementation	\$78,448.24	\$0.00	\$78,448.24	
PE51-05	CDC PH Infrastructure Funding	\$72,359.08	\$0.00	\$72,359.08	
		\$875,992.44	\$5,892.86	\$881,885.30	

5) Foot Not	res:
PE10-02	7/15/2023: Full FY24 award funds may be used in FY24 during the period of 7/1/23-12/31/2023 due to DIS WF federal grant funding being cut by CDC on 12/31/23.
PE40-01	7/2023: Unspent SFY2024 Q1 award will be rescinded by the state, cannot be carried over to SFY2024 Q2-4 period.
PE40-02	7/2023: Q2-4 Unspent grant award will be rescinded by the state at end of SFY2024
PE42-11	7/2023: Indirect charges cap at 10%.
PE42-12	7/2023: Indirect Charges cap at 10%.
PE43-01	7/2023: Awarded funds can be spent on allowable costs for the period of 7/1/2023 - 9/30/23. Any unspent funds will be de-obligated.
PE51-01	7/2023: Bridge funding for 7/1/23-9/30/23.

6) Comment	s:
PE01-01	7/2023: SFY24 funding available 7/1/23-9/30/23 only.
PE12-01	7/2023: SFY24 Award funding for first 3 months only
PE13	7/15/23: SFY24 Award adding funding for 10/1/23-6/30/24 7/2023: SFY24 Bridge Funding 7/1/23-9/30/23
PE40-01	7/2023: SFY2024 Q1 WIC NSA grant award. \$11,083 must spent on Nutrition Ed; \$1,659 on BF Promotion. Underspend Q1 award cannot be carried over to Q2-4 period.
PE40-02	7/2023: SFY2024 Q2-4 grant award. \$33,250 must be spent on Nutrition Ed, \$4,977 on BF Promotion.
PE40-05	7/2023: SFY2024 WIC Farmers Market Mini grant award. Final Q2 Rev & Exp Report is required for final accounting. Underspent funds will be rescinded by the state in February 2024
PE51-05	7/2023: SFY24 Award Available 7/1/23-6/30/24. Funding total is split over 60 months for the period of 12/1/22-11/30/27.

## 7) Capital outlay Requested in this action:

Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay. Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equipment with a purchase price in excess of \$5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

Program	Item Description	Cost	PROG APPROV	



## POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE \* DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174 (503) 623-1888 \* FAX (503) 623-1889

## **MEMORANDUM**

TO:

**Board of Commissioners** 

FROM:

Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

DATE:

September 21, 2023

**SUBJECT:** 

Adopt Resolution No. 23-14

Wednesday - October 4, 2023 (Consent)

## **RECOMMENDATION:**

The Board of Commissioners adopt Resolution No. 23-14.

## **ISSUE**:

Shall the Board approve this Resolution?

## **DISCUSSION:**

Employee input has been sought, a public meeting has been conducted, and County Counsel, the Administrative Officer and the Commissioners have all reviewed the recommended revisions Human Resources has made to the Polk County Personnel Rules. Resolution 23-14 has been prepared and is ready to be signed by the Polk County Board of Commissioners.

## **FISCAL IMPACT:**

There is no anticipated fiscal impact.

1					
2					
3					
4	BEFORE THE BOARD OF CO	OMMISSIONERS FOR			
5	POLK COUNTY, OREGON				
6					
7	In the Matter of	)			
8	Personnel Rules Amendments	)			
9					
10		RESOLUTION NO. 23-14			
11	WWDDDAG 4 D II G				
12	WHEREAS, the Polk County Code Section 11.110 requires the Board of Commissioners				
13	annually to review the Polk Coun	ity Personnel Rules; and			
14 15	WHEDEAS the Doord	has disseminated proposed amendments for revie	ur and comment		
16	by County employees per Rule 2.	1 1	w and comment		
17	by County employees per Rule 2.	1.1, Development of Rules, and			
18	WHEREAS the Board r	reviewed the Polk County Personnel Rules on Oct	oher 3 2023 as		
19	required by Polk County Code Se	•	.0001 3, 2023 us		
20	required by Femilia County Code Se	or and and and			
21	WHEREAS, the Board of	conducted a public meeting on October 3 2023 or	amendments to		
22	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	a copy of which is attached hereto and incorpora			
23		ty Code Section 11.115; now, therefore:	•		
24					
25	THE POLK COUNTY BOARI	O OF COMMISSIONERS RESOLVE:			
26					
27	•	nel Rules are revised in the manner set out in Ap	pendix A of this		
28	resolution.				
29	DATED 0 . 1 . 4 2022	D.II. O			
30	DATED October 4, 2023	Dallas, Oregon.			
31 32		POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSION	MEDC		
33		FOLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIO	INERS		
34					
35					
36		Jeremy Gordon, Chairman			
37		toromy cordon, chamman			
38					
39		Craig Pope, Commissioner			
40					
41					
42		Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner			
43	Approved as to Form:				
44					
45					
46	Morgan Smith				
47	County Counsel				

- (a) Persons employed by contract to render expert services of an occasional or exceptional character, including those employed by temporary agencies to perform work for the County.
- (b) Volunteer uncompensated personnel.
- (c) Members of commissions or boards.

#### 1.2.4 Separability

In the event that any provision of these Rules is declared invalid by any court or competent jurisdiction, made illegal through enactment of federal or state law or through government regulations having the full force and effect of law, all other provisions not invalidated shall remain in full force and effect. The provision declared invalid shall be amended as provided for in Rule 2.1.

#### 1.2.5 At-Will Employment

Subject to applicable contractual provisions, employment at Polk County is at-will, meaning that employment may be terminated at any time, with or without notice or explanation, for any lawful reason, either by the County or the employee. All employees are hired for an indefinite period and may resign or be terminated without cause or notice at any time. This is what is meant by "at-will" employment. Normally we try to give regular employees (i.e., those who have successfully completed the probationary period) an opportunity to correct less serious performance problems before being terminated. In any given case, however, we may decide that the nature of the problem and/or the employee's overall record makes immediate termination appropriate. If we decide some form of lesser action is appropriate, we may choose a verbal warning, written reprimand, probation, or suspension or another appropriate action.

#### **RULE 3 - THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN**

## 3.1 - ADOPTION AND MAINTENANCE OF PLAN

Human Resources shall be responsible for developing and maintaining a position classification plan, which shall group all positions in the Classified and Unclassified Service, except for positions of elected officials and temporary employees, into classes based upon their duties, authority, responsibility and qualifications.

#### 3,2 - PURPOSE

The purpose of the classification plan is to provide a complete and continuous inventory of all positions in Classified and Unclassified Service and to provide accurate descriptions and specifications for each class of employment. The plan shall standardize titles, each of which shall be indicative of the definite range of duties and responsibilities and have the same meaning throughout the Classified and Unclassified Service.

## 3.3 - ALLOCATION OF POSITIONS AND CLASSIFICATIONS

Subject to Board of Commissioners' approval, Human Resources shall be responsible for allocating all classifications in Classified and Unclassified Service to specific salary ranges or wage rates on the Compensation Plan and shall be responsible for assigning all positions to classifications. Human Resources may conduct, or have conducted, classification studies to determine the proper allocation of classifications to the salary ranges or position assignment to the proper classification. All salary schedules will be in compliance with the Equal Pay Act of 1963 and the Oregon Equal Pay Act

## 3.3.1 Classification Specifications

Each classification shall include the class title, a description of the duties and responsibilities of the work and a statement of the minimum qualifications a person should possess to perform the work with reasonable prospects of success.

The definitions in classification specifications are descriptive and not restrictive. They are intended to indicate the kinds of positions that are allocated to the several classes, and determined by duties and responsibilities, and are not to be construed as declaring what the duties and responsibilities of any position may be, or as limiting or modifying the power of any supervisor to assign, direct and control the work of employees under their supervision. The use of a particular expression or illustration as to duties shall not be held to exclude others not mentioned that are of similar kind or quality, nor shall any specific omission necessarily mean that such factor is not included.

(a) In determining the classification to which any position should be allocated or assigned, the specification describing each classification shall be considered as a whole. Consideration shall be given to the general duties, specific tasks, responsibilities, qualification requirements and relationships to other classes, as a composite description of the kind of employment, which the class is intended to embrace. (b) The minimum qualifications enumerated in a classification specification shall relate to the reasonable standards of experience and training required at the time of recruitment and appointment of an employee.

#### 3.3.2 Use of Classification Titles

The classification title shall be the official title of every position allocated to the classification for the purpose of Personnel Actions and records and shall be used on all official documents referencing positions.

#### 3.3.3 Changes to Positions/Classifications

Human Resources may recommend to the Board of Commissioners for final approval, the establishment, revision or abolishment of positions and classifications as necessary for the effective and efficient operation of the County. When a Department Head desires to establish a new position or classification, a description of duties, responsibilities and qualifications of the position or classification shall be submitted to Human Resources with supporting rationale and recommendation. Human Resources shall review the recommendation, and if approved, submit it to the Board of Commissioners.

## 3.3.4 Classification of Existing Positions, Allocations of Existing Classifications

Employees shall perform duties and be assigned responsibilities consistent with those outlined in the classification for the position to which they are assigned. If a Department Head determines that the duties and responsibilities performed have altered substantially, they may submit a written request for classification analysis to Human Resources, who shall make an appropriate recommendation to the Board of Commissioners.

#### 3.3.5 Effect of Upward Reclassification on Incumbents

When a position is reclassified to a classification at a higher salary range, the incumbent employee shall be continued in the position. When an employee is reclassified, they will receive at least a one-step (four percent) pay increase. If the new range does not have a step that is one-step higher, the employee's salary will be advanced to the next step higher than four percent. If such increase is not sufficient to place the salary within the new salary range, the salary will be advanced to the minimum step of the new range. Department heads may grant higher promotional increases with approval of the Board of Commissionersafter consultation with Human Resources. At no time shall the increase result in a step that is higher than available in the new salary range. Employees affected by upward reclassification, as just described, shall retain the salary review date previously established during their employment with the County.

(a) If the incumbent employee of the position is unable to meet the minimum qualifications of the position as reclassified, the rules governing transfer, demotion, or layoff may apply. The position may be temporarily under filled at the discretion of Human Resources if it can be demonstrated that the

#### **RULE 4 - THE COMPENSATION PLAN**

## 4.1 - PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF THE COMPENSATION PLAN

Human Resources shall recommend to the Board of Commissioners for adoption a Compensation Plan for all classified and unclassified positions in the County. The Compensation Plan shall include for each classification a minimum and maximum rate of pay and such intermediate rates as are considered necessary and equitable. Flat rates may be used in place of salary ranges where appropriate.

The salary range assigned to each classification shall be established to equitably reflect the differences in the duties and responsibilities between it and other classifications and shall take into account salary rates and benefits paid by other employers for similar work in relevant public employment, the County's financial condition and policies, unusual problems of recruitment and turnover, and other relevant factors, including pay equity under the law.

## 4.2 - ADMINISTRATION OF THE COMPENSATION PLAN

Human Resources is responsible for the on-going maintenance and administration of the Compensation Plan. The following are general requirements of Human Resources in administering the Compensation Plan:

#### 4.2.1 Salary Adjustments

Salary range adjustments are to be distinguished from salary increases based on meritorious performance, as they are not intended to give recognition to length or quality of service, but are to be based on prevailing rates of pay for the various classes of work in the County. The rates of pay for incumbents when these adjustments are made shall be determined pursuant to Rule 3.3.5 and 3.3.6.

#### 4.2.2 Rates of Pay

Each employee shall be paid a rate of pay within the salary range for the classification in which they are employed. Rates of pay are those contained in the salary range. The rate of pay shall not be below minimum step or above the maximum step of the salary range for the classification in which the employee is employed. The exception to this rule would be the reclassification of a position to a lower range when the wage could be frozen.

#### 4.2.3 Pay Periods and Pay Dates

#### (a) Monthly

Employees shall be paid on a monthly basis with the payday being the last business day of the month. An employee in regular status may request and shall receive a pay advance no more than twice in a calendar year if Human Resources find there is a bona fide emergency. Pay advances will be limited to half the hours worked, less required taxes and deductions. Forms are available from Payroll. No payroll advances will be issued after the 20<sup>th</sup> of the month. Allow two days for check processing.

#### 4.2.4 Entrance Salary

Normally an employee will be appointed or re-appointed at the minimum or next higher step of the range established for the classification. Appointments at higher steps will be governed by the following procedures:

#### (a) Procedure

When a Department Head believes that an appointment should be made at a higher rate than step 52 the Department Head shall present a request in writing to the Board of Commissioners Human Resources prior to making such appointment. Human Resources shall review the recommendation and make a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners based on the information available.

#### (b) Basis of Approval

The factors to be reviewed in approving an appointment above the minimum or next higher step are availability of applicants with the qualifications for the vacant position, qualifications of all available applicants, the resulting pay relationship with other employees, prior experience of the candidate and the time available to continue the recruitment process.

#### 4.2.5 Part-time Employees

Pay for part-time employees shall be based upon the established hourly rate for the classification.

#### 4.2.6 Partial Monthly Pay

When a full-time employee's pay is based on less than a full month of employment, the employee's wages shall be based on a prorated amount of the full-time salary based on actual hours worked.

#### 4.3 - SALARY ADJUSTMENTS BASED ON PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

Salary increases are not automatic, but rather are based on the performance level of the employee. All salary increases, with the exception of salary increases resulting from classification changes, shall be recommended through the performance appraisal system described in Rule 9.

## 4.3.1 Eligibility for Merit Salary Increases Based on Performance Appraisal

Employees hired at the first step in the salary range shall be granted a salary increase after six full months of continuous service and annually thereafter on their Anniversary Date if they are not at the maximum step of the salary range of their classification, and provided their performance is rated satisfactory or higher as reflected in their performance appraisal. The department head can grant or deny merit increases to employees rated needs improvement. Employees rated unsatisfactory shall not receive an increase. (Refer to Rule 9.2 - Denial of Salary Increase Based on Performance Review.) An employee hired at step 2 or above shall be eligible for a salary increase after 12 full months of continuous service. The anniversary date shall be the date of receiving the salary increase under this section.

Employees can be given more than a one-step increase if their performance is exceptionally good, the department head recommends it, and the Board approves it,

#### 4.4 - SALARY ADJUSTMENTS BASED ON CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

#### 4.4.1 Promotion

When an employee is promoted, they will receive at least a one-step (four percent) pay increase. If the new range does not have a step that is one-step higher, the employee's salary will be advanced to the next step higher than four percent. If such increase is not sufficient to place the salary within the new salary range, the salary will be advanced to the minimum step of the new range. Department heads may grant higher promotional increases with approval of the Board of Commissioners. The employee will be placed on probation to the position. If appointed to step 1, then upon satisfactory completion of the first 6 full calendar months of the probationary period, the employee will be eligible to proceed to the next step of the salary range. If appointed to step 2 or above, the employee will be eligible to proceed to the next step after 12 full calendar months of service. If an employee is serving a probationary period at the time of promotion, he/she shall be required to serve a 6-month probation in the new position, or complete the number of months remaining on the initial hire probationary period, whichever is longer, to commence on the date the promotion is effective. All employees will be eligible for salary increases annually thereafter, until they reach the maximum step of the salary range. Employees must be rated outstanding, above average, or satisfactory or above on the performance appraisal form to be eligible for the increase.

#### 4.4.2 Demotion

If an employee is demoted to a classification having a lower salary range, the salary shall be set as shown below. The employee's Anniversary Date shall remain unchanged as a result of demotion.

- (a) Promoted employees who have been demoted (or who request to be demoted) to their former lower class shall be put on the step in the lower range that they would have been on if they hadn't been promoted, taking into account merit increases they would have earned during time in the higher class.
- (b) Promoted employees who have been demoted (or who request to be demoted) to a class that is not their former shall be put on the step in the lower range that is closest to the step they were on prior to the promotion, taking into account merit increases they would have earned during time in the higher class.
- (c) Employees originally hired into a higher class shall be put on the same step in the lower class as they were on in the higher class.

#### 4.4.3 Transfer

13 Polk County Personnel Rules 2/2019 Employees shall be eligible for overtime compensation as required by the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). Sworn law enforcement officers of the Sheriff's Office with the rank of Sergeant, upon request of the Sheriff and with the approval of the Board of Commissioners, shall be eligible for overtime compensation or compensatory time.

#### 4.6.3 Overtime Compensation

- (a) Compensation for authorized overtime shall be at the rate of time-and-one-half the employee's regular hourly wage rate. Overtime work shall be computed daily to the nearest quarter (1/4) hour. Compensation shall be paid in cash or compensatory time as determined by the County. Compensatory time off is to be scheduled by the mutual agreement of the department and employee. Employees may accrue up to №0 hours of compensatory time and carry this amount into each new fiscal year. Compensatory time in excess of №0 hours shall be paid at the end of the next regular pay period.
- (b) An employee shall not be entitled to multiple overtime compensation on a particular unit of time, even though more than one of the conditions set forth in Rule 4.6.1 may apply with respect to that particular unit of time.
- (c) For the purpose of computing overtime hours for overtime\_eligible employees, vacation leave, compensatory leave, and sick leave shall not be regarded as hours worked, vacation leave and compensatory leave shall be regarded as hours worked.

#### 4.7 - INCENTIVE AWARDS

The Board of Commissioners may authorize cash awards in recognition of meritorious proposals by employees to enhance efficiency and safety.

#### RULE 5 - CONTINUOUS SERVICE DATE/ANNIVERSARY DATE

#### 5.1 - DATE OF HIRE

The Date of Hire is the first day an employee actually works in an authorized position.

#### 5.1.1 Use of Date of Hire

The Date of Hire shall be used for determining length of service with the County and for determining the Continuous Service Date for each employee. <u>Time in a temporary position will not be counted toward length of service</u>

#### 5.1.2 Adjustment of the Date of Hire

Employees who are on leave of absence without pay for more than 14 consecutive calendar days shall have their Date of Hire adjusted the total number of calendar days that they are on such leave. The Date of Hire shall not be adjusted if an employee is on military leave, either with or without pay, eron workers' compensation leave without pay or leave covered under Federal Medical Leave Act, Oregon Family Leave Act, or Paid Leave Oregon.

#### 5.2 - CONTINUOUS SERVICE DATE

The Continuous Service Date is the first calendar day of the first full month worked. Employees shall receive credit for the first full month worked when initially appointed as a new hire, if the effective date of the initial appointment is on the first working day of the month. The Date of Hire will determine the Continuous Service Date.

#### 5.2.1 Use of the Continuous Service Date

The Continuous Service Date shall be used for determining eligibility for employment benefits, which are based on full months of service.

#### 5.2.2 Adjustment of the Continuous Service Date

Adjustment of the Date of Hire can result in an adjustment of the Continuous Service Date if the Date of Hire adjustment results in that date being moved to a later month, or later than the first working day of the month.

#### 5.3 - ANNIVERSARY DATE

The Anniversary Date is the date when an employee is eligible for a salary increase based on performance appraisal.

#### 5.3.1 Anniversary Date

The Anniversary Date for new hires of the County hired at step 1 will be the first of the month following the completion of 6 full months of the probationary period, and annually thereafter. For those hired at step 2 or above, it will be the first of the month following completion of 12 full months of service, and annually thereafter.

## **RULE 6 - RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION**

#### 6.1 - PURPOSE

The purpose of the Recruitment and Selection Processes for the County is to insure that all position vacancies are filled with qualified, competent individuals who are well suited to perform in the position for which they were employed. All vacancies in regular positions shall be filled as provided in this Rule and the Rules on compensation and classification.

An active recruitment program will be conducted as part of the selection process to provide for a competitive system of filling positions in the County. Its purpose is to give all applicants an equal opportunity for employment with the County.

#### 6.2 - NEPOTISM PROHIBITED

No relative shall be employed where one would supervise the other. "Relative" is defined as husband, wife, brother, sister, mother, father, son, daughter, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, step-child, qualified domestic partner or any person residing in the same household. In the event that two employees become relatives, neither will be required to transfer or terminate unless one will supervise the other. If a transfer or termination is required, the employees and the responsible Department Head or and Human Resources, as appropriate, will jointly attempt to find an alternative work assignment for one of the two employees. If no alternative assignment is available within 90 days, it will be necessary for one of the employees to be terminated under conditions of layoff pursuant to Rule 15.2.

## 6.3 - PROVISIONS OF THE RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION PROCESS

## 6.3.1 Determination to Open Recruitment

Human Resources shall determine when position vacancies shall be opened and recruitment initiated for the purpose of filling current and projected vacancies.

## (a) Posting of Announcements

Notice of all position vacancies will be posted on the official bulletin board of the County, on all department bulletin boards, and on the County website. In addition, information on position vacancies may be published as necessary to assure reaching qualified applicants.

#### (b) Equal Opportunity Employer

All job announcements shall indicate that the County is an "Equal Opportunity Employer."

#### (c) Recruitment Designation

Recruitment for all position vacancies shall be designated as either open to competition from all qualified applicants or for County employees only, except as provided for under Rule 7.5 - Reappointment. The department head shall designate the type of recruitment with the approval Human Resources.

#### (d) Recruitment Period

Announcement of all position vacancies shall be made for a minimum of 7 full calendar days in advance of the final closing date for the receipt of applications.

- In the event that a position vacancy occurs within 6 months of the closing date of a previously advertised position in the same classification, such position will not require announcement again. Applications received for the previous position may be considered.
- If a sufficient number of qualified applications, as determined by Human Resources, are not received for position openings, the position may be re-announced as many times as necessary.

#### 6,3,2 Applications

#### (a) Apply in Writing

Any applicant, including employees of the County, must apply in writing using the County employment application form process for announced position vacancies.

#### (b) Receipt of Applications

All applications must be received no later than 5:00 p.m.the time determined for on the closing date on the recruitment announcement.

## (c) Application for More than One Position

Applicants may apply for more than one position simultaneously, provided such positions are open for accepting applications and a separate application is submitted for each position.

#### (d) Maintenance of Files

All applications submitted for open positions shall be stored for three years. Applications over three years old may be destroyed in accordance with record retention laws.

## 6.3.3 Qualifications and Screening of Applicants

#### (a) Minimum Qualifications

Applicants for appointment, promotion, or transfer must possess the minimum qualifications stated in the job announcement. Applicants must be able to read, write, and speak English.

#### (b) Applicant Screening

All applications submitted for a position vacancy shall be reviewed for evaluation of qualifications based on skills and experience as related to the position for which they were submitted. In addition, applicants may be required to perform job-related tests or exercises either as part of the initial application process or of the screening process.

#### (c) Approval

All position appointments require the approval of the Human Resources Director and ratification of the Board of Commissioners. Should Human

Resources not approve the appointment, the Department Head may request review by the Board of Commissioners.

## 6.3.4 Preference for County Employees

- (a) County Employee is defined as a full-time or part-time employee currently listed on the payroll roster for the County. Temporary employees do not qualify for hiring preference.
- (b) Preference for County Employees shall mean that County employees submitting applications for vacancies who possess the minimum qualifications shall be interviewed for the vacant position.
- (c) If a minimum of three County employees possess the minimum qualifications for a vacant position, an internal recruitment and selection process may substitute for an open recruitment once approved by Human Resources. Temporary employees shall notwill be considered eligible to compete in an internal recruitment if they meet the minimum qualifications. The recruitment procedure outlined in Personnel Rule 6.3.1 must be followed with the exception of publishing the announcement outside of the County.

## 6.3.5 Notification of Applicants

Applicants who are selected to interview shall be contacted by the department within three weeks after the closing date of the recruitment. No correspondence will be sent to those not selected to interview, except in the case of Sheriff's Office applicants, who will be notified via letter of test dates and test scores.

#### **RULE 8 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD**

#### 8.1 - PURPOSE

The probationary period shall be an integral part of the selection and screening process. It shall be utilized by supervisors as an opportunity to observe the employee's work, to train and aid the employee in adjustment to his/her new position, and to reject any employee whose work performance and/or fit within the department is deemed substandard.

#### 8.2 - DURATION

All entrance appointments, re-appointments, and all promotional appointments in the classified service shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period. Employees in designated professional, technical, supervisory, and certified and supervisory law enforcement positions shall serve a probationary period of 12 full calendar months. Promoted employees shall serve a probationary period of 6 full calendar months, unless being promoted while serving a probationary period, then refer to Rule 4.4.1. Employees promoted to a supervisory position shall serve a probationary period of 12 full calendar months. All other employees shall serve a probation period of 6 full calendar months. Any interruption of service during the probationary period shall not be counted as part of such period.

#### 8.2.1 Commencement and Completion of the Probationary Period

The probationary period shall commence on the employee's Date of Hire, and shall be completed on the first of the month following either 6 or 12 full consecutive calendar months of service in accordance with Rule 8.2. The Department Head may recommend an employee be appointed to regular status any time before 12 months and after at least 6 months when the employee's performance clearly demonstrates competence in the job. An employee shall receive credit for the first full month of service if the employee's Date of Hire is the first working day of the month.

#### 8.3 - MID-PROBATION PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL AND WORK PLAN

At the mid-point of an employee's probationary period, supervisors shall prepare a written appraisal of the employee's performance of job duties, willingness and ability to satisfactorily perform the duties involved, and the employee's work habits and dependability. A detailed work plan shall be submitted to indicate the specific duties, responsibilities, and expectations of the employee while working in this position. The performance appraisal and work plan shall be entered into the employee's personnel file.

#### 8.4 - TRANSFER DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD

An employee who is transferred to another position in the same classification prior to completion of the probationary period shall complete the probationary period in the latter position.

#### 8,5 - DEMOTION DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD

A probationary employee serving as a result of promotion, who fails to qualify in the new position for reasons other than misconduct or delinquency, and who held regular status immediately prior to this promotional appointment, may be demoted to the employee's former position, if available, or the policies governing layoff may be initiated.

## 8.6 - REMOVAL DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD

At any time during an employee's probationary period with the County, Human Resources may remove an employee if, in the opinion of the Department Head and Human Resources, the employee is unable or unwilling to perform the duties satisfactorily, or the employee's work habits, conduct and/or dependability do not merit continuance in the service.

## 8.7 - ACTION AT END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD

At the completion of an employee's probationary period, the <u>assigned Supervisor or</u> Department Head shall prepare a written appraisal of the employee's job performance, willingness and ability to satisfactorily perform the duties involved, and the employee's work habits and dependability. The <u>assigned Supervisor or</u> Department Head shall, through the Performance Appraisal process, recommend one of the following actions:

## 8.7.1 Regular Appointment

When the services of the employee have been found to be satisfactory or above, the Department Head shall recommend that the employee be appointed to regular status. When the employee has been found to be in need of improvement, the Department Head may recommend the employee is appointed to regular status in lieu of proceeding under Rule 8.7.2 or 8.7.3.

## 8.7.2 Termination of Employment

When the employee has been found to be in need of improvement, the Department Head may recommend termination, or in the case of a promoted employee, returned to his/her previous classification if there is a position available. When the services of the employee have been found unsatisfactory, the Department Head shall recommend that the employee be terminated, or in the case of a promoted employee, returned to his/her previous classification if there is a position available.

## 8.7.3 Continue Probation

Request that the probationary period be extended for an additional period up to 6 months. Human Resources shall review all requests for probation extension and approve or deny the request. A denial of the request shall be referred back to the requesting Department Head for action under Rule 8.7.1 or 8.7.2. Another performance appraisal will be required at the completion of the extended probationary period.

#### 8.8 - FRINGE BENEFIT STATUS DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD

This section applies only to new employees serving a period of probation to County. It does not apply to employees who are serving a period of probation to a position as the result of a promotion.

#### 8.8.1 Leave

No leave, other than authorized leave without pay, sick leave, bereavement leave, compensatory time, military leave, or vacation leave approved under Rule 8.8.2 (b) shall be taken by an employee during the probationary period.

#### 8.8.2 Accrual of Leave

- (a) Sick leave benefits are based upon or earned in connection with actual time worked and may be prorated as such. Sick leave will accrue during an employee's probationary period. The employee shall be allowed use of sick leave during his/her probationary period.
- (b) Vacation leave benefits are based upon or earned in connection with actual time worked and may be prorated as such. Vacation will accumulate during an employee's first six months of employment <u>Employees will be allowed to use vacation leave during their trial service period</u>, but <u>vacation leave</u> shall not be payable <u>upon termination of employment</u> until the completion of six consecutive months of employment.
- (c) Bereavement leave will be granted to probationary employees pursuant to the applicable collective bargaining agreement or Personnel Rule 11.4.5.

#### 8.8.3 Health Insurance and Dental Insurance

Employees serving the initial probationary period to the County are eligible to participate in the health and dental insurance programs subject to enrollment requirements.

#### 8.8.4 Other Insurance

Employees serving the initial probationary period to the County are eligible to participate in other insurance programs subject to enrollment requirements.

#### 8.8.5 Retirement Program

Employees are not eligible to participate in the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OSRP) until after 6 full calendar months of employment, or unless otherwise required by statute.

#### **RULE 9 - PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL SYSTEM**

#### 9.1 - GENERAL POLICY

It is the policy of the County to review the work of each employee regularly to assure that the employee is meeting the performance standards of the particular position to which they are assigned. The objectives of performance appraisal are to provide employees with information relating to how well they are performing their assignments; to identify training and job experience needed to improve job-related skills and/or abilities; to provide a basis for regular appointment and salary increase decisions; to discuss professional conduct, and to set goals for the employee for the ensuing period.

#### 9.1.1 Performance Appraisal Ratings

The County shall establish and make effective a system of performance appraisal ratings designed to give a fair evaluation of the work performed and of the efficiency and effectiveness demonstrated by the employee in meeting the job responsibilities. The performance appraisal system established by the County shall allow for the rating of employee performance in the following manner:

#### (a) Outstanding Rating Consistently Exceeds High Standards:

Makes outstanding contribution in critical areas while meeting all major requirements of the position Employee exceeded job expectations and made significant contributions to Polk County. Showed consistent and unusual initiative, creativity, persistence or thoroughness in several performance areas.

#### (b) Above Average Exceeds Standards:

An employee exceeds the expected performance level in one or more major or critical areas Employee exceeded job expectations. Showed consistent initiative, creativity thoroughness and persistence in at least one performance area.

#### (c) SatisfactoryFully Meets Standards:

Performs requirements of the position in a fully satisfactory mannerEmployee consistently met minimum job expectations in all performance areas. Performed well and exhibited no significant deficiencies.

#### (d) Needs ImprovementImprovement Needed in Areas.

Employee did not perform to a satisfactory level in at least one Performance Area and did not perform well enough in the other Performance Areas to offset this rating. Supervisor has informed employee of actions needed and deadlines to correct deficiencies described.

#### (d) Unsatisfactory RatingNeeds Significant Improvement.

Employee Ffails to meet performance requirements of the position. Work-performance is either deficient in one or more central areas necessary to perform the job or overall performance is inadequate. Has not accomplished previous corrective actions, if any. Employee shall be denied a merit increase, if up for one. Supervisor has informed employee of actions

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

needed to correct deficiencies. Employee has been warned of possible disciplinary action.

## 9.1.2 Use of Performance Appraisal Ratings

The performance appraisal rating forms shall be a part of the employee's personnel file and shall be used as a factor in determining promotion, demotion, transfer, layoff, salary increases, disciplinary action, and satisfactory completion of the probationary period.

#### 9.1.3 Frequency of Appraisal

Informal appraisals of an employee should be frequent and honest. Formal appraisals should adhere to the following guidelines.

#### (a) New Hires

New hires shall be appraised at the mid-point of their probationary period to the County, at the completion of their probationary period to County for attainment of regular status, and at least once annually thereafter on their Anniversary Date.

#### (b) Promoted Employees

Promoted employees shall be appraised at the mid-point of their probationary period to the position and at the completion of their probationary period to position. Appraisals will occur at least once annually thereafter on the employee's Anniversary Date.

#### (c) Regular Employees

Regular employees shall be evaluated at least once annually on their Anniversary Date.

## (d) Change of Employee's Department Head

Upon the change of an employee's Supervisor or Department Head, the employee, if he/she has not received an appraisal within a 6-month period, may request the outgoing supervisor prepare a report of performance appraisal.

## 9.2 - DENIAL OF SALARY INCREASE BASED ON PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Department Head shall give employees notification in writing of the withholding of their salary increase due to unsatisfactory performance. Such notification shall be given to the employee not later than the employee's Anniversary Date for salary increase (Rule 4.3.1). The denial of an employee's annual salary increase must be documented on the performance appraisal form with any performance rating in the needs improvement or unsatisfactorybelow the "Fully Meets Standards" category (Refer to Rule 9.1.1).

#### 9.3 - SIGNATURE ON PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

The Performance Appraisal form will be signed by both the Department Head and the appraised employee. All Performance Appraisals shall be reviewed and signed by Human Resources and the Board of Commissioners or their designee. The employee's signature on the Performance Appraisal form shall indicate that the employee has read the appraisal, but does not necessarily mean that the employee is in agreement with the appraisal. If an employee refuses to sign the Performance Appraisal form, the Department Head shall note the employee's refusal on the form and forward to Human Resources for filing.

## 9.4 - EMPLOYEE DISAGREEMENT WITH RATING

If an employee disagrees with a performance rating, the employee may file a response with reasons for disagreement in the employee's personnel file. Such response must

## **RULE 10 - ATTENDANCE AND WORK SCHEDULES**

#### 10.1 - HOURS OF WORKWORKWEEK

The County's regular work schedule shall consist of 40-hours of work during a workweek. The standard is for personnel to be at work from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding rest periods and lunch breaks. Employees on approved flexible work schedules may have work hours that deviate from the standard, for which a PA is required. For overtime purposes, the workweek shall begin at 12:01 a.m. on Monday and end at midnight on Sunday. Employees of the Sheriff's Office observe a workweek that shall begin at 12:01 a.m. Sunday and end at midnight Saturday.

#### 10.2 - MEALS AND REST PERIODS

#### 10.2.1 Meals

All employees shall be granted at least a 30 minute unpaid meal period when the work period is 6 hours or greater. Whenever possible, such meal periods shall be scheduled in the middle of the workday. In no event shall rest periods be used to shorten the workday or to earn overtime.

#### 10.2.2 Rest Periods

A rest period of 15 minutes shall be permitted for all classified employees for each 4-hour work period. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled in the middle of the work period. In no event shall rest periods be used to shorten the workday or to earn overtime.

#### 10.2.3 Lactation Breaks

- a) The County shall provide unpaid, 30 minute rest periods during each four-hour work period for employees to express breast milk. This shall only apply to an employee who is expressing milk for her child 18 menths of age or younger-rest periods to employees needing to express milk as required by law. The County will make reasonable efforts to provide a location other than a public restroom in close proximity to the employee's work area.
- b) The employee shall provide reasonable notice to the County that the employee intends to express milk upon returning to work.
- c) The employee shall, if feasible, take rest periods to express milk at the same time as the rest periods or meal periods that are otherwise provided to the employee.

#### 10.3 - REPORTING TIME

Each employee shall have a fixed time for reporting to work and leaving from work, however, work schedules may be changed upon 10 days notice, whenever possible or as a result of an emergency.

#### **RULE 11 - COUNTY-PROVIDED BENEFITS**

#### 11.1 - HOLIDAYS

The following days shall be recognized and observed as holidays for trial service and regular employees in the County service working fifty percent (50%) or more of the equivalent full-time position:

New Year's Day January 1 Martin Luther King Day Third Monday in January Presidents Day Third Monday in February Memorial Day Last Monday in May Juneteenth June 19 July 4 Independence Day First Monday in September Labor Day Veterans Day November 11 Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November Day After Thanksgiving Day Fourth Friday in November On Monday: The whole day. On Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday: 1:00 Christmas Eve p.m. to 5:00 p.m. or four hours paid leave depending on the work schedule. On Friday, Saturday, and Sunday: No paid time off. Christmas Day December 25 Personal Leave Days Employees' choice subject to County staffing requirements (Union contract

specific)

The floating holidays will be converted to personal leave days each fiscal year on July 1 and must be used by June 30 of the next year. Employees must be in employed status (as opposed to temporary) on July 1, or the first working day of July if July 1 falls on a Saturday or Sunday of each year to be eligible for floating days off. Personal leave days must be taken in full day increments.

Personal Leave Days will be accrued at the following rate based on dates of hire:

- Employees hired on July 1st will receive 4 PLDs.
- Employees hired between July 42<sup>strd</sup> and October September 430<sup>thst</sup> will receive 3 PLDs.
- Employees hired between October 1<sup>st</sup> and January December 3<sup>1st</sup> will receive 2 PLDs.

Employees hired between January 1st and April 1st will receive 1 PLD.

Non-represented employees shall receive five personal leave days. These days must be used during the course of the fiscal year and shall not be carried over for future use.

Formatted: List Paragraph, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.5" + Indent

32 Polk County Personnel Rules 2/2019 Also, any other holiday granted by the Board of Commissioners.

#### 11.1.1 Eligibility for Paid Holidays and Personal Leave Days

- (a) Employees in regular positions of 40-hours per week shall receive 8 hours of pay for each day listed above except Christmas Eve. All employees must be in paid status both the working day before and the working day after the holiday to be eligible to receive pay for the holiday.
- (b) Part-time employees in regular positions working more than 50 percent of a full-time position shall receive paid holiday hours for each day listed above on a prorated basis (actual hours worked each week computed as a percentage of a 40-hour workweek).
- (c) In no case shall an employee receive holiday compensation for both the actual holiday and the observed

(c)
(d) Temporary employees are not eligible for paid holidays.

#### 11.1.2 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday

Whenever a holiday observed by the County falls on Saturday, the preceeding Friday shall be observed as a holiday. Whenever a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as a holiday.

#### 11.1.3 Holiday Compensation

- (a) An overtime-eligible employee who works on a holiday will be compensated at a rate of time-and-one-half for all hours worked on the holiday.
- (b) Employees on flexible work schedules shall receive the same number of holidays as employees working a regular workweek according to their eligibility described in Rule 11.1.1.
- (c) In no case shall an employee receive holiday compensation for the actual holiday and the observed holiday.
- (d) Employees in the classifications of Sergeant, Lieutenant, Sheriff's Office Manager and Emergency Operations & Support Services Manager Correctional LPN or Correctional RN shall receive one day off each calendar month, or 12 each year, in lieu of holidays. A maximum of 80 hours in lieu of holidays may be accrued.

#### 11.1.4 Holiday during Leave

Should an employee be on an authorized leave with pay when a holiday occurs, the holiday shall be paid and not charged against sick leave or vacation leave accumulation. Pay for holidays occurring during leave without pay shall be prorated.

### 11.2 - VACATION LEAVE

33 Polk County Personnel Rules 2/2019 Formatted: No bullets or numbering

For Sheriff's Office non-represented employees, hours accrued in excess of 200 or 250 (per 11.2.1 above) shall be forfeited from the employee's accumulation unless work scheduling by management prevents use of vacation, in which case the employee shall be compensated in pay for the excess.

#### 11.2.4 Vacation Buyout

Each fiscal year, employees with vacation leave balances of 100 hours or more may elect during August and/or MarchJanuary. May and/or October payroll periods to cash out up to 40 hours of accrued vacation. Employees who wish to cash out their vacation time (up to 40 hours) shall note the amount of vacation time on their March and/or August timesheet. At no time shall the buyout cause the employee to drop below 60 hours of accrued vacation.

#### 11.2.5 Vacation Accrual during Probation

- (a) New employees serving their probationary period to the County will be awardedaccrue vacation hours they would have accumulated during that time after six full calendar monthstheir probationary period, however, they will not be paid out for vacation hours upon leaving County employment unless they have been employed for at least six months. They may use vacation hours while serving their first six months probationary period enly as allowed under Rule 8.8.2.
- (b) Employees who have served at least six full calendar months and are serving a probationary period to a position as a result of promotion or other employment action are eligible to accrue and use accrued vacation leave with pay.

#### 11.2.6 Scheduling of Vacations

Whenever possible, employees shall have the right to determine vacation time; however, the County reserves the right to schedule vacation time. Requests for vacation leave shall be reviewed with and approved by the Department Head, or their designee, in advance so as to ensure continuity of services.

## 11.2.7 Vacation Pay on Termination of Employment

An employee who terminates employment during the first 6 full calendar months of the probationary period shall not be entitled to cash compensation for accrued vacation leave. Those employees who complete 6 full calendar months of the probationary period, and then separate from the County, shall be entitled to pay for accrued vacation leave balances, including prorated accruals for time worked during the final month of employment. Prorated accruals shall be computed in accordance with Rule 11.2 1. In no case shall payment be for more than the maximum accumulation allowed. In case of death of the employee, compensation for accrued vacation leave shall be paid in the same manner that salary due to the decedent is paid.

#### 11.3 - SICK LEAVE

#### 11.3.1 Accrual of Sick Leave

Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of 8 hours for each full calendar month of service and shall be credited to the employee's leave account the first day of the month following accrual. Employees having unpaid leave during a calendar month shall accrue sick leave in the same manner as vacation leave as stated in Rule 11.2.2.

- (a) New employees serving their initial probationary period in regular positions are eligible to accrue and utilize sick leave.
- (b) Part-time regular employees working 50 percent or more of a full-time position shall accrue sick leave on a prorated basis (computed as a percentage of a 40-hour workweek).

(c) Temporary employees are not eligible to accrue sick leave at a rate of one hour of leave for every 30 hours worked, in accordance with Oregon Sick Leave law.

#### **RULE 12 - STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING**

#### 12.1 - GENERAL TRAINING ACTIVITIES

The County shall encourage the development of training programs designed to meet personnel needs and to prepare employees for promotion to positions of greater responsibility.

#### 12.2 - ORIENTATION OF NEW EMPLOYEES

The County shall provide an orientation to familiarize new employees with their obligations and rights and to inform them about the general functions of the County.

#### 12,3 - TRAVEL AND CONFERENCE REGULATIONS

\* See stand alone Travel and Per Diem Policy

12.3.1 Purpose and Application

These regulations establish the conditions and procedures governing reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Polk County officers and employees resulting from authorized travel. These regulations apply to all County officers and employees, unless a specific exception is granted in writing and in advance by the Board of Commissioners or as otherwise specified in a collective bargaining agreement.

#### 12.3.2 Definitions - As used in these regulations:

- (a) "Board" means the Polk County Board of Commissioners or its designee
- (b) "Common carrier" means aircraft, train, bus, or taxi
- (c) "Daily private auto expense" means use of private automobile daily or regularly in the course of county business.
- (d) "Miscellaneous expenses" means expenses directly related to the conduct of official business, such as official telephone calls, office supplies, parking fees and local transportation.
- (e) "Personal expenses" means expenses incurred by an employee that are of a personal nature such as laundry, personal grooming, alcoholic beverages, entertainment or personal telephone calls.
- (f) "Travel expenses" means expenses for transportation, meals, and lodging.

#### 12.3.3 Reimbursement Rates

(a) Meals. Reimbursement shall be the actual cost or the following limits; whichever is less:

Breakfast: \$10 (No substitution for meals included in the registration fee.)

Lunch: \$12

Dinner: \$18 Tips shall not be reimbursed at any time. When travel or training requires an employee to leave the state an additional \$5 per day will be added to the maximum reimbursement rate for meals.

- (b) Lodging The cost of lodging will be reimbursed when an employee is required to remain overnight away from home. The amount will be based on single occupancy rates, not to exceed \$85. If lodging is associated with the attendance at a conference, the cost of lodging will be approved. Employees are expected to select lodging at reasonable rates, considering the circumstances of the conference.
- (c) The limits of this section may be exceeded with prior written approval by the Board if the employee is attending an official function where lodging and meal costs are higher, or if suitable lodging or meals cannot be found except at a higher cost.

## 12.3.4 Method of Transportation

- (a) General Services must approve in advance any proposed method of transportation, except as provided in Rule 12.3.5 (d).
- (b) No employee shall drive a motor vehicle, whether owned by the County or privately owned, while outside the State of Oregon on official business, except as provided in Rule 12.3.5 (d).
- (c) Regulations governing use of County and privately owned vehicles being driven on official business are contained in Motor Pool Requirements

#### 12.3.5 Out of State Travel

- (a) All out-of-state travel must be approved by the Board at least 10 workdays before the proposed travel begins, except for demonstrated emergencies and as provided in Rule 12.3.5 (d).
- (b) Requests for out of state travel must be accompanied by complete justification for the travel.
- (c) Consistent with Rule 12.3.4 (a), out of state travel must be by common carrier only except as provided in Rule 12.3.5 (d).
- (d) Notwithstanding Rules 12.3.4 (a), (b) and 12.3.5 (a) and (c), the Sheriff may approve out of state travel on an emergency basis for purposes of returning fugitives from justice, and the Human Services Director may approve out of state travel on an emergency basis for purposes of returning runaway juveniles. When use of a common carrier is not feasible, use of a County or privately owned vehicle may be authorized. However, the Sheriff or Human Services Director immediately shall report such authorization the Administrative Officer and the Board, with a concise statement of the circumstances demonstrating an emergency.

## 12.3.6 Reimbursement Procedures

- (a) All claims for travel expense reimbursement must be submitted to Accounts Payable on a Polk County Payment Voucher with the Polk County Travel Expense Voucher attached or the combined Polk County Payment Voucher and Travel Reimbursement Form.
- (b) All claims for daily private auto expense reimbursement must be submitted to Accounts Payable on a Polk County Payment Voucher with the Polk County Automobile Reimbursement Log attached or the combined Polk County Automobile Reimbursement Log and Voucher form.
- (c) Claims for reimbursement must be submitted not later than the 10<sup>th</sup> day of the month following calendar month during which the travel was performed.
- (d) Itemized and original receipts are required for all travel expenses including transportation, meals, lodging, and registration fees. Receipts are not required for bridge, ferry and parking charges not exceeding \$10.

#### 12.3.7 Travel Advances

- (a) Travel advances require prior written approval by the Board.
- (b) To be considered for a travel advance, the employee's department head must submit a request to the Board at least five workdays before the travel begins, stating the destination and purpose of the travel and the estimated costs.
- (c) Within three-working days after returning, the employee must submit to the Board a completed Travel Expense Voucher and a receipt from the County Treasurer's Office showing that any excess amounts of the travel advance have been returned.

#### 12.3.8 POLK COUNTY MILEAGE GUIDE

This mileage guide may be used for reimbursement of travel expenses in lieu of edometer readings.

Albany	31	Lincoln City	45
Ashland	248	McMinnville	25
Astoria	129	Medford	236
Baker City	364	Newberg	37
Beaverton	59	Monmouth	9
Bend	146	Newport	70
Burns	276	Ontario	406
Coos Bay	164	Pendleton	268
Corvallis	29	Portland	- 60
Eugene	70	Prineville	163
Florence	112	Redmond	144
Forest Grove	51	Roseburg	140
Grants Pass	208	— Salem 15	
Gresham	71	Seaside	113

Independence 11		Springfield	73
John Day	280	St. Helens	89
Klamath Falls	242	Sunriver	161
La Grande	320	The Dalles	143
Lakeview	320	Tillamook	64

#### 12.3.9 Accidents

- (a) Report all accidents to General Services or the Board of Commissioners by phone immediately. If physically unable to do so, ask the police to notify the County
  - 1. If physically able, accomplish the following:
    - Ascertain if anyone appears injured. If so, take action to obtain ambulance and medical care.
    - ii. Call police to the scene before vehicles are moved. Request the investigating officer to file a written report regardless of the extent of damage.
    - Do not discuss the accident with anyone except police or County officials. When answering questions state the facts, but Do Not Admit or Imply Fault.
- (b) Exchange the following information with the other driver or person involved in the accident-
  - 1. Name, address and telephone number.
  - 2. Driver's License (State and license number).
  - 3. Vehicle make, model, year and license plate number.
  - Insurance company's name, agent and address. (Polk County is your insurer.)
- (c) An accident report must be filed with General Services within 24 hours of the accident. If the employee is unable to file a report, the employee's supervisor shall file the report.
- (d) State law requires an Accident Report to be filed with the Division of Motor Vehicles, County Sheriff or Chief of Police within 72 hours if property damage exceeds \$1,500 or anyone was injured (See ORS 811.720 to 811.740). The Sheriff can supply the necessary forms.

#### (s) Unprofessionalism

Failure to conform to generally accepted standards of conduct for a profession and/or county department. In this context, "conduct" includes actions, communications and appearance. Employees are expected, at all times, to represent Polk County in an appropriate and professional manner.

#### 13.4 - DRUG FREE WORK PLACE

Creating a healthy and safe work environment is a top priority of the County. This policy reflects our commitment to our employees and our belief that drug or alcohol abuse poses a serious risk, not only to the individual but also to other employees and the public. In addition to emphasizing the County's belief that safety and health are essential, the policy underscores our firm commitment to a drug-free workplace.

Employees are prohibited, as a condition of employment, from the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, use, or being under the influence of a controlled substance or intoxicant. Additionally, the possession, use, or sale of alcohol, marijuana or misuse of any legal drugs in the workplace is prohibited. Employees who come to work under the influence of alcohol, marijuana, misused prescription drugs or any illegal drug, or consume them during work hours, to include breaks and lunch hours, will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

#### 13.4.1 Employees Convicted of Drug Violations

Employees who are convicted under any criminal drug statute for any violation occurring in the work place shall notify the County in writing within 5 calendar days. The County shall take one of the following actions within 30 calendar days after receiving notice of a drug conviction:

- (a) Take appropriate personnel action against a convicted employee, up to and including termination.
- (b) Require the convicted employee to participate in and satisfactorily complete a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved by the appropriate agency.

#### 13.5 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION

It is the policy of the County that employee discipline be corrective, progressive, and lawful.

#### 13.5.1 Corrective

Disciplinary action shall be corrective in the sense that the employee understands about the causes and reasons for an employee's deficiencies, corrects those deficiencies and attempts to restore <a href="https://www.miself.herselfthemselves">https://www.miselfthemselves</a> to a productive and positive employment status. The object of disciplinary action is to correct problem situations and mistakes, and to the extent possible under the circumstances, minimize employees' loss of dignity and self-esteem. Disciplinary action is not punitive in nature and is not undertaken with the intent to punish. Disciplinary actions will be handled on a fair and equitable basis.

#### RULE 16 - CONFLICTS OF INTEREST/RESTRICTIONS ON POLITICAL ACTS

#### 16.1 - CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The proper operation of the County requires that employees be independent, impartial and responsible to the people it serves; that decisions and policy be made in the proper channels of the County structure; that County employment not be used for personal gain; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of the County and its employees.

No employee shall engage in any business or transaction or shall have a financial or other personal interest, or that of a family member, direct or indirect, which is incompatible with the proper discharge of his/her official duties in the County interest or would tend to impair his/hertheir independence of judgment or action in the performance of his/hertheir official duties. Personal, as distinguished from financial interest, includes an interest arising from blood or marriage relationships or close business or political association.

Specific conflicts of interest are enumerated below for the guidance of employees.

#### 16.1.1 Preferential Treatment of Individuals Generally

Employees shall not grant any special consideration, treatment, or advantage to any citizen-person beyond that which is available to every other citizen-person.

#### 16.1.2 Incompatible Employment

- (a) No employee shall engage in or accept private employment or render services for private interests when such employment or service is incompatible with the proper discharge of employee's duties or would tend to impair employee's independence of judgment or action in the performance of employee's official duties.
- (b) Employees shall not independently provide for a fee to another agency, organization, employer, or person, services for which the employee is compensated by County to provide on behalf of the County, unless the provision of such services is authorized in writing by the Board of Commissioners.

#### 16.1.3 Notification of Outside Employment

Employees are required to notify their Department Heads when accepting secondary, or concurrent employment, outside the service of the County. Such documentation shall become part of the employee's personnel file, which is secured in the Human Resources Department.

#### 16.1.4 Disclosure of Confidential Information

No employee shall disclose confidential information concerning the property, government or affairs of the County without proper legal authorization; or, use such information to advance the financial or other private interest of himself/herselfthemselves or others.

#### 16.1.5 Representing Private Interests before the County or Courts

No person whose salary is paid in whole or in part by the County shall appear on behalf of private interests before any County-related activities. County employees shall not represent private interests in any action or proceeding against the interests of the County in any litigation to which the County is a party.

An employee may appear before the County and its committees on behalf of constituents in the course of his/hertheir duties as a representative of the County or in the performance of his/hertheir obligations. However, no person shall accept a retainer or compensation that is contingent upon a specific action by the County.

#### 16.1.6 Interest in Contracts with the County

No employee of the County shall have any interest or accrue any benefits from any contract issued by the County. Employees shall fully disclose any indirect relationship or financial benefit relating to grants, programs, and contracts between the County and other organizations and individuals.

#### 16.1.7 How to Know if You Have a Conflict of Interest

How does a public official know when they are met with a conflict of interest and, if met with one, what must they do? Oregon Government Ethics law identifies and defines two types of conflicts of interest. An actual conflict of interest is defined in ORS 244,020(1) and a potential conflict of interest is defined in ORS 244,020(13). In brief, a public official is met with a conflict of interest when participating in official action which would or could result in a financial benefit or detriment to the public official, a relative of the public official or a business with which either is associated.

The difference between an actual conflict of interest and a potential conflict of interest is determined by the words "would" and "could." A public official is met with an actual conflict of interest when the public official participates in an official action, decision, or recommendation that would affect the financial interest of the official, their relative, or a business with which they or their relative is associated. A public official is met with a potential conflict of interest when the public official participates in an official action, decision, or recommendation that could affect the financial interest of the official, their relative, or a business with which they or their relative is associated. The following hypothetical circumstances are offered to illustrate the difference between actual and potential conflicts of interest and what is not a conflict of interest:

• POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST: A school district has decided to construct a new elementary school and the school board is at the stage of developing criteria for the construction bid process. A recently elected school board member's son owns a construction company in town. The school board member would be met with a potential conflict of interest when participating in official actions to develop the bid criteria, because the official actions she takes

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.56"

could financially impact her son's construction company, a business with which her relative is associated.

- ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST: A school district is soliciting bids for the construction of a new elementary school. The bid deadline was last week and the district Superintendent has notified the school board that there are four qualified bids and the school board will be awarding the bid to one of the four bidders at their upcoming meeting. One of the qualified bids was submitted by the construction company owned by a school board member's son. The school board member would be met with an actual conflict of interest when awarding this bid because the effect of her decision would have a financial impact (either positive or negative) on her son's construction company, a business with which her relative is associated. Public Official Guide Page 12 Adopted April 2021
- NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST: A school district is soliciting bids for the construction of a new elementary school. One of the qualified bids was submitted by a construction company owned by a board member's best friend but neither the board member nor any relative are associated with the construction company. The school board member would not be met with a conflict of interest when awarding this bid because the effect of her official decision would not or could not have a financial impact on herself, a relative, or a business with which she or her relative is associated.

Public officials who are hired as public employees, agents, or who volunteer with their public bodies must provide written notice to the person who appointed or employed them (their "appointing authority"). The notice must describe the nature of the conflict of interest with which they are met and request that their appointing authority dispose of the conflict. This written disclosure to the appointing authority satisfies the requirements of ORS 244.120 for the employee. The appointing authority must then designate an alternate person to handle the matter or direct the public official in how to dispose of the matter. [ORS 244.120(1)(c)

Example of Disclosure and Disposal: A County employee's job includes issuing building permits. An application concerns property owned by the employee's stepfather. The employee would be met with a conflict of interest and would need to make a written disclosure of his conflict to his appointing authority, in this case his department supervisor, and ask that the supervisor dispose of the conflict. Once the employee makes the written disclosure, he has complied with the conflict of interest statute. Upon receipt of a written disclosure from an employee, the supervisor must respond by either delegating an alternative person to handle the matter or directing the public official in how to dispose of the matter. Note: If the supervisor directs the public official to dispose of the conflict by handling his Public Official Guide Page 13 Adopted April 2021 relative's permit the same as any other permit, the supervisor could be asking an employee to take official actions that may violate the prohibited use of position statute. ORS 244.040(1). See page 17

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0,56

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.56"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.56"

Formatted: Underline

#### 16.1.7 Disclosure of Interest

Polk County Personnel Rules 2/2019

Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 1"

An employee of the County who has a financial or other private interest in any project or program being considered by the County shall disclose on the records of the County or other appropriate authority the nature and extent of such interest. This provision shall not apply if the person disqualifies himself/herselfthemselves from any action relating to the program or project. All employees having a real or potential conflict of interest shall notify their Department Head and Human Resources, and shall hand off all decision making responsibilities to their direct supervisor or an other employee as determined by the Department Head.

An employee who has a financial or other private interest and who participates in discussion with or gives an official opinion to the County shall disclose on the records of the County, or other appropriate authority, the nature and extent of such interest.

#### 16.2 - RESTRICTIONS ON POLITICAL ACTIVITIES

#### 16.2.1 Incorporation of ORS 260.432

ORS 260.432 is hereby incorporated into these Personnel Rules.

#### 16.2.2 Political Activities During Work Hours

No employee – (other than employees in elected positions) including temporary employees, volunteer, or intern of the County shall solicit any money, influence, service or other thing of value, or otherwise aid or promote any political committee or the nomination or election of any person to public office while on the job during working hours; however, nothing in this subsection is intended to restrict the right of employees to express their personal political views.

#### 16.2.3 Use of Position for Political Influence

No employee shall promise an appointment to any County position, favorable treatment or the influence of <a href="his/hertheir">his/hertheir</a> office or other favor or reward in return for partisan and non-partisan political activity on <a href="his/hertheir">his/hertheir</a> behalf, or on behalf of any candidate or cause.

#### 16.2.4 Use of Title

No employee – (other than employees in elected positions) – holding an administrative, management or professional position with the County shall use <a href="his/hertheir">his/hertheir</a> working title in any letter to the editor, endorsement or publication that is an outlet for political advocacy.

#### 16.3 - APPLICABILITY

When an employee has doubt as to the applicability of a provision of these Rules to a particular situation, they should request an interpretative decision from Human Resources. The employee shall have the opportunity to present his/hertheir

#### **RULE 17 - NON-DISCRIMINATION**

#### 17.1 - EQUAL OPPORTUNITY POLICY

Polk County is an Equal Opportunity Employer and, as such, states its commitment to providing equal employment opportunities to all persons in matters affecting, but not limited to, recruitment, employment, compensation, benefits, promotions, training, discipline, transfer and layoff practices without regard to a persons race, color, religion, national origin, sex. gender identity, age, marital or family status, association, disability, sexual orientation, injured worker or Veteran's status (except where age or non-disability are bona fide occupational qualifications).

Polk County does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to or treatment of employment in its programs or activities.

Polk County is committed to providing all employees with a work environment free of discrimination or harassment of any kind.

Polk County is committed to fostering an inclusive, diverse and equitable environment where all employees are valued, respected and empowered. Through this commitment, we can better serve our community and our employees.

Discrimination will not be tolerated in our workplace. It is against the policies of Polk County for any employee to discriminate against another employee, client or any other member of the public. This includes acts of discrimination against any applicant during the hiring process, against an employee during disciplinary investigations or through the evaluation process.

Any supervisor or other employee found in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including discharge.

#### 17.2 - HARASSMENT PROHIBITED

It is the policy of Polk County that all employees be able to work in a setting free from all forms of unlawful discrimination, including harassment, on the basis of protected class status, including, but not limited to: race, color, religion, gender (sex), national origin, age, sexual orientation, disability or retaliation. (Examples of retaliation are opposing discrimination and participating in an investigation of discrimination.)

#### 17.2.1 Harassment

Harassment is verbal or physical conduct that demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual because of race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or disability, or that of their relatives, friends, or associates, and that: (1) has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment; (2) has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance; or (3) otherwise adversely affects an individual's employment opportunities.

Harassing conduct includes, but is not limited to, the following: (1) epithets, slurs, negative stereotyping, demeaning comments or labels, or threatening, intimidating or hostile acts that relate to race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or disability; and (2) written or graphic material that demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual or group because of race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, or disability and that is placed on walls, bulletin boards, computers or elsewhere on the employer's premises, or circulated in the workplace.

Harassment shall also include private behaviors via written or spoken language, social media posts, etc., that have an adverse effect on the workplace, work environment and work culture.

#### 17.2.2 Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is a form of gender (sex) discrimination. The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission has defined sexual harassment as follows:

"Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other conduct of a sexual nature when directed at an individual because of an individual's gender, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when (1) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment, (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment."

Prohibited sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances; sexual jokes, calendars, posters, cartoons, magazines; derogatory or physically descriptive comments about or towards another employee; sexually suggestive comments or demands for sexual favors in exchange for favorable treatment or continued employment; inappropriate use of County communications including e-mail and telephone (inappropriate as viewed by the receiver of the communication), unwelcome touching or physical contact, flirtations, leering, whistling, obscene comments or gestures; punishment or favoritism on the basis of an employee's gender; sexual slurs; negative sexual stereotyping; inappropriate comments about a person's gender.

Harassment will not be tolerated in our workplace. It is against the policies of Polk County for any employee to harass another employee, client or any other member of the public. This includes acts between supervisors and employees; it also includes acts between one employee and another.

#### 17.2.3 Complaints of Harassment

If you believe that you have been harassed, report the harassment immediately. The report should be to either: (1) your supervisor, (2) Human Resources, or (3) your department head. You may report harassment to

In compliance with the ADA, Human Resources is appointed to coordinate ADA compliance in all aspects except facilities. The Administrative Officer Services Director will work in conjunction with Human Resources to coordinate ADA compliance with respect to County facilities.

#### 17.3.3 ADA/504 Coordination/Complaints

A complaint alleging discrimination based on a disability will be submitted in writing to the County's ADA/504 coordinators (County Administrative Officer or Human Resources Administrative Services Director). Complaints concerning employment practices will be submitted to Human Resources; those concerning County facilities will be submitted to the Administrative Officer Services Director.

#### **RULE 18 - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE**

#### 18.1 - PURPOSE

The safety and security of Polk County employees, customers, vendors, contractors, and the general public are of vital importance. Therefore, threats and acts of violence made by an employee or member of the public against another person's life, health, well-being, family, or property will be dealt with in a zero tolerance manner by Polk County.

The Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OR-OSHA) requires employers provide employees with a safe place of employment, free from recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or serious harm to employees.

#### 18.2 - DEFINITIONS

#### 18.2.1 Zero Tolerance:

Employees who display any violence in the workplace or threaten violence in the workplace or use social media to threaten violence in the workplace whether created during work hours or after work hours, are subject to disciplinary action up to and including the possibility of termination of employment. Members of the public who display any violence in the workplace or threaten violence in the workplace shall be reported to law enforcement officials.

#### 18.2.2 Violence:

Physically harming another, shoving, pushing, intimidating, coercion, brandishing weapons, and/or communicating threats or talk of violence in written, electronic, physical, or verbal form.

#### 18.3 - GENERAL POLICY

This policy applies to, but is not limited to all employees, contractors, and volunteers of Polk County.

#### 18.3.1 The following is prohibited by Polk County:

- (a) Any act or threat of violence made by an employee against another except in the performance of the employee's official job duties.
- (b) Any act or threat of violence, including, but not limited to, intimidation or coercion.
- (c) Any act or threat of violence, which endangers the safety of employees, customers, vendors, contractors, or the general public.
- (d) Any act or threat of violence made directly or indirectly by words, gestures, or symbols

- (e) (e) Use or possession of a weapon in any County building, except by law enforcement officials.
- (f) Any threat of violence through a social media platform with an expectation of such threat taking place at work or against an employee.

While certain employees of Polk County may be required as a condition of their work assignment to possess or are permitted to carry, as authorized by law, firearms, weapons, or other dangerous devices, it is Polk County policy that employees are to use them only in accordance with departmental operating procedures and all applicable State and Federal laws.

Employees are expected to report to their supervisors, department head or Human Resources any behaviors that compromise this policy and the County's ability to maintain a safe work environment.

#### 18.4 - POLICY GUIDELINES/PROCEDURES

#### 18.4.1 Report threats of violence

Each employee of Polk County and every person on Polk County property are encouraged to report incidents of threats or acts of violence of which s/he isthey are aware.

In cases where the individual is a County employee, the report should be made to the individual's immediate supervisor, a management level or supervisory employee, if the immediate supervisor is not available, or to the Board of Commissioners, Human Resources. Administrative Services Director or the Administrative Officer (Risk Manager).

If the threat is immediate, the supervisor should call 911 or contact the Sheriff's office at 503 623-9251. Each supervisor shall promptly refer the matter to the Board of Commissioners or to Human Resources. Concurrently, with the initiation of any investigation leading to a proposed disciplinary action, the County shall report the incidents of threats or acts of violence promptly to the appropriate law enforcement agency.

In cases where the reporting individual is NOT a County employee, the report should be made to the appropriate law enforcement agency.

Nothing in this policy alters any other reporting obligation established in these Personnel Rules or in State, Federal, or other applicable law.

#### 18.5 - INVESTIGATION PROCEDURE

A confidential investigation will be conducted immediately. Anonymity and confidentiality for the employee reporting the threat or act will be maintained to the degree possible.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0,5" + Tab after: 0.75" + Indent at: 0,75"

#### 19.3 - RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervisors are responsible for the safety of their employees. Safety suggestions are encouraged, and will be objectively evaluated by the supervisor, senior management, and/or the area Safety Committee for necessary action. If employees have any questions about safety, or the safe way to do something, they should ask questions. Employees should not take unnecessary chances. Only through an intensive, cooperative effort between management and employees can we be assured of a successful County that provides a safe and stable workplace.

#### 19.4 - PROCEDURES FOLLOWING AN ACCIDENT

#### (a) EMPLOYEE:

Immediately notify supervisor, no matter how small the accident. Complete an Accident/Incident Report (available from Payroll). This form must be filled out on any accident no matter how minor. The Accident Report is retained by PayrollHuman Resources; it is not sent to the County's workers' compensation insurance carrier. Do not fill out Form 801, unless the accident requires medical treatment or time loss from work.

#### (b) SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT HEAD:

Forward completed Supervisor Accident Investigation ff orm to Payrell Human Resources along with the employee Accident Report and an 801 if necessaryand supervisor sections completed and signed. The applicable safety committee will review the accident and conduct an accident investigation if indicated.

## (c) FOR ACCIDENTS REQUIRING MEDICAL TREATMENT AND/OR TIME LOSS FROM WORK:

#### 1 EMPLOYEE:

Must complete the worker's section of Form 801 (available from Payroll) and forward it to supervisor immediately by calling Rapid Care at (855)959-2741.

#### 2. SUPERVISORHUMAN RESOURCES:

Fill out the employer's sections of Form 801. Supervisors are required to forward Form 801 to Payroll within five days of the injury with the completed accident investigation form. A delay may cause loss of benefits to the employeeA Human Resources representative will complete the employer portion of the online 801 form after receiving it from SAIF.

#### **RULE 20 - LEAVE SHARING**

#### 20.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Regular status employees may be eligible for the Leave Sharing Program.

The intent of the Leave Sharing Program is to provide a means for employees to assist another employee who is out on, or is likely to go on, leave without pay because of a serious non-occupational illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition, or to care for a seriously ill family member of the employee's immediate family (spouse, same sex domestic partner, parent, parent in law, child, stepchild or *de facto* parent). A *de facto* parent is a person with whom the employee has developed a parental relationship in the absence of a biological or adoptive parent.

An employee who is receiving, or is eligible to receive, any type of retirement disability, short-term or long-term disability insurance, or other supplemental income is not eligible to receive donated leave. Human Resources shall verify an employee's eligibility.

Employees may donate time to the County for use by a specific recipient. Such donations will be confidential. Employees will be allowed to donate or receive accrued vacation, compensatory time, or, for the Sheriff's Office only, holiday time. Sick leave cannot be donated. Donations may not be withdrawn once made.

The County shall determine the order in which donated leave will be surrendered to the recipient employee. Donations not used will not be debited against the donating employee's accrued leave.

#### 20.2 - PROCESS TO REQUEST LEAVE SHARING

Donations may be requested by the recipient employee or on his/her behalf by co-workers or his/her union representatives. The requester shall submit a memorandum to Human Resources documenting the reasons for the donation and the approximate amount of time needed by the employee who will receive the donations. Upon approval, Human Resources shall, at the recipient employee's request, notify the requesting employee(s) that the recipient employee is eligible to receive voluntary anonymous donations. The County employees may be notified through e-mail of the donation request, with the recipient employee's written permission.

The Human Resources Department may not solicit donations on the employee's behalf. This must be done by non-recipient employee(s) on non-working time.

The Human Resources Department may not release any medical information regarding the recipient employee unless authorized to do so, in writing, by the recipient employee.

Employees are prohibited from threatening or coercing or attempting to threaten or coerce another employee for the purpose of interfering with employee rights involving donating, receiving, or using donated leave time.

This policy is not subject to the grievance or arbitration section of any collective bargaining agreement, nor is it subject to any appeal procedure provided under the Personnel Rules of Polk County.

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at 0.5"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at 0.5"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at 0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

77 Polk County Personnel Rules 2/2019 Polk County retains the right to change, modify, or discontinue this program at any time.

#### 20.3 CONDITIONS FOR RECEIVING LEAVE DONATIONS

An employee who receives any denated leave time must exhaust all available earned leave (personal leave, vacation leave, sick leave, compensatory time, etc.) before using any donated leave.

The recipient employee must file a medical certificate from his/her health care practitioner verifying eligibility under these criteria with Human Resources.

Donated hours shall not be processed in an amount greater than what is approximately necessary to cover the employee's anticipated need.

f otherwise qualifying under this Article, shared leave may be used to provide paid Family & Medical Leave that would otherwise be unpaid, but may not extend the length of Family & Medical Leave entitlement.

Denated leave may not be used to extend employment beyond the point that it would otherwise end by operation of law, rule, or regulation. For example, if an employee would have otherwise been terminated due to layoff or other reasons, donated leave may not be used to extend employment.

An employee who uses donated leave continues to accrue personal leave days and holidays.

If an employee is otherwise eligible for County paid health benefits, the employee will continue to receive those benefits while receiving donated leave.

#### 20.4 CONDITIONS FOR MAKING LEAVE DONATIONS

Donations must be made in increments of whole hours. Donations should be submitted on the donation form, provided in the employee handbook, to Payroll and must remain anonymous thereafter. Donations will not be converted to dollar figures, employees donating an hour of paid leave will pass the hour to the recipient, who will be paid at the recipient's regular rate of pay

Denors must sign a declaration that their donation is voluntary and is intended as a gift and has been made without coercion, compensation or for other consideration. Donations must be received by the 20<sup>th</sup> day of the menth in order to be available for use by the recipient during that pay period.

RULE 240 - FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE POLICY

201.1 - PURPOSE

78
Polk County Personnel Rules
2/2019

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at

Formatted: Normal, Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at 1.06"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at 0.56"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5", Tab stops: Not at 0.5"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: -0.5"

This document provides information to employees applying for or being placed on family and medical leave under the terms of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and/or Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA); and

Establishes a policy that allows employees to take up to 12 weeks of protected leave in a 12-month period for: their own serious health condition; for the birth or adoption of a child; for the placement of a foster child; for the care of a child with a non-serious health condition; for the care of a spouse, parent, child, grandparent, grandchild; parent-in-law or same-sex domestic partner who has a serious health condition; for an exigency leave related to a spouse, child or parent who is a service member in the National Guard or Reserves and who is on active duty or called to active duty; for the care of a spouse, child, parent, or next of kin of a covered service member with a serious injury or illness; and

Provides that upon certification by a medical practitioner, the employee shall utilize leave on an incremental (hourly) or full time basis. If an employee has two (2) or more qualifying events during a 12-month period, the employee is still only eligible for a total of 12 weeks of leave benefits (with the exception of parental leave and some pregnancy disability).

#### 201.2 - ELIGIBILITY

OFLA: Employees must have been employed by Polk County for a minimum of 180 days and worked an average of 25 hours per week in the preceding 180 days to qualify for state family leave (20 hours/week for military family leave - OMFLA). Employees taking leave to care for a newborn, adopted, or newly-placed foster child only have to meet the 180 day employment requirement (regardless of the number of hours worked).

**FMLA:** Employees must have been employed by Polk County for a minimum of 12 months (need not be consecutive) and worked a minimum of 1,250 hours in the preceding 12 months.

#### 204.3 - QUALIFYING PURPOSES

Under **federal law** (**FMLA**), employees are entitled to leave in the following situations:

- (a) When the employee is unable to perform the essential functions of the job because of a serious health condition, including pregnancy-related conditions. In some situations, additional leave may be available for a pregnancy-related disability; and/or
- (b) In the event of a birth or adoption of a child under the age of 18 (including the placement of a foster child under age 18) within 12 months of the event; and/or
- (c) To care for a spouse, parent, or child under age 18 who has a serious health condition or a mentally/physically impaired child aged 18 or over; and/or
- (d) For a qualifying exigency related to a spouse, child or parent who is a covered service member and who is on active duty or called to active duty

- (for members of the National Guard or military reserves, the call to active duty must be to a foreign country); and/or
- (e) Up to 26 weeks of leave in a 12-month period to care for a spouse, child, parent, or next of kin who is a covered service member who incurred a serious injury or illness on active duty in the Armed Forces. Employee is entitled to utilize this leave for up to five years after service member's separation from military service.

In addition, employees are entitled to take Family and Medical Leave in the following situations under **Oregon law** (**OFLA**):

- (a) To provide home care for a child under age 18 with a non-serious health condition, provided another family member is not able or willing to care for the child; and/or
- (b) To care for a child age 18 or over, grandparent, grandchild, parent-in-law, same-sex domestic partner, or child or parent of a same-sex domestic partner who has a serious health condition.
- (c) An additional 12 weeks of intermittent sick child leave for those employees who take a full 12-week block of family leave as parental leave, provided the child does not have a serious health condition. (OFLA)
- (d) Oregon Military Family Leave Act (OMFLA). An employee who is the spouse of a member of the Armed Forces of the United States, National Guard or military reserve forces and who has been notified of an impending call/order to active duty or who has been deployed is entitled to a total of 14 days of unpaid leave per deployment prior to military spouse's deployment and/or when the spouse is on leave from deployment.
- (e) Bereavement Leave. Up to two weeks of leave within a twelve month period to deal with the death of a covered family member for: attending the funeral or alternative to a funeral of the family member; making arrangements necessitated by the death of the family member; or grieving the death of the family member. Leave must be completed within 60 days of the date the employee receives notice of the death. Employee must provide verbal notice within 24 hours of commencing the leave and written notice within three days of returning to work. The two weeks is included in the 12-week OFLA annual entitlement. Employee may use any type of accrued leave to cover the time off outside the three days of bereavement leave provided by the county.

#### 204.4 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

(a) Twelve-week leave period. The County may designate, or the employee shall request, up to 12 weeks (480 hours) of leave during any "rolling" 12-month

period for qualifying family or medical reasons. A rolling year means that the 12-month eligibility period starts when the leave begins and continues for the next 12 consecutive months. The 12 weeks of leave will be pro-rated for part time employees. Leave may be authorized by the medical practitioner to be taken intermittently (except for parental leave) or as a solid block of time. For military caregiver leave, employees are entitled to take up to 26 weeks of leave during a 12-month period. Family and medical leave is counted from the first day of absence under the qualifying purpose.

- (b) Paid leaves and leave without pay to run concurrently. Paid leaves and leave without pay run concurrently with family and medical leave where allowed by law. Any accrued paid leave, such as vacation, holiday time, compensatory time, personal leave days, and sick leave must be exhausted before unpaid leave is taken (except for a 40 hour vacation bank, if requested in advance by the employee). Sick leave shall be used consistent with the sick leave policy under Personnel Rule 11.3 or collective bargaining agreements. Leave under OFLA runs concurrently with leave under FMLA in most circumstances.
- (c) Family and medical leave cannot run concurrently with Workers' Compensation Leave.
- (d) Intermittent/reduced schedule leave. Intermittent or reduced schedule leave is not available for parental leave used for the birth of a child unless preapproved by the Board of Commissioners. However, intermittent leave is allowed to effectuate adoption or foster placement of a child. In situations where intermittent or reduced schedule leave is necessary, employees may be temporarily transferred to available alternative positions that better accommodate intermittent or reduced schedule leave. Leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child must be taken within one year of the birth or placement of the child.
- (e) An employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule treatment for serious health conditions in a manner that does not unduly disrupt County operations.
- (f) Family benefit. If two family members work for the County and each wish to take family leave for a qualifying purpose, both employees are eligible to take 12 weeks of leave.
- (g) Continuation of benefits. Employees on leave are entitled to continue health benefits on the same terms and conditions as active employees for up to 12 weeks in a leave calculation year. When leave without pay is necessary, health insurance premiums and employee-paid optional benefits will be the responsibility of the employee to pay their portion of the benefit to the County by the 1<sup>st</sup> of each month. Employees should contact Payroll to discuss their situation prior to taking leave without pay.

The County may recover premiums paid on behalf of an employee who does not return to work for reasons other than a serious health condition of the employee or family member or other circumstances beyond the control of the employee.

#### 204.5 - REQUEST PROCEDURES

- (a) Anticipated Situations: An employee must submit an Employee Request for FMLA/OFLA form at least thirty (30) days in advance of the start of the leave when the need for leave is foreseeable. Failure to provide timely notice may reduce the length of leave entitlement. The Certification of Health Care Provider form is also required. Failure to provide sufficient information to support the need for leave will result in leave denial.
- (b) <u>Unanticipated Situations</u>: In unanticipated or emergency situations where there is no opportunity to give notice and the need for leave is not anticipated, the employee must provide notification as soon as is practical and complete the <u>Employee Request for FMLA/OFLA</u>. The <u>Certification of Health Care</u> <u>Provider form is also required</u>.
- (c) In instances where the leave is taken for the birth or placement of a child, an **Employee Request for FMLA/OFLA** form must be submitted in advance with the anticipated leave dates on it. When the actual birth or adoption occurs, the employee must notify his or her supervisor or Human Resources if different than the dates originally submitted.
- (d) <u>Bereavement Leave</u> (OFLA only): The employee must submit an Employee Request for FMLA/OFLA with an explanation of the need for leave within three days of returning to work.
- (e) Human Resources may also, upon receiving information of a qualifying condition, evoke FMLA/OFLA without a formal request. Human Resources will notify the employee in writing of any such action taken.

#### 204.6 - MEDICAL CERTIFICATION

- (a) Certification of Need:
  - 1. Certification of the need for family and medical leave is required. In the event of a serious health condition of the employee or family member, the certification must be provided by a medical practitioner on the applicable certification form within fifteen (15) days of the request for leave. The due date is specified on the Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities form that the employee will receive from Human Resources. Failure to provide the required medical certification may delay the start of the leave or cause denial of family and medical leave. The employee may be required to furnish periodic medical reports as frequently as every thirty (30) days and to complete the full recertification process every six (6) months.
  - 2. In the event of a request for parental leave to care for a newly adopted child or a newly placed foster child, the employee is required to provide verification from the agency.

- 3. Prior to allowing an employee to return to work, a Fitness for Duty Certification must be submitted by an employee who has been off work due to his/her own illness or injury. This must be completed and signed by a medical practitioner and submitted to the supervisor or Human Resources prior to or upon return. It must indicate that the employee is able to return to work and what restrictions there are, if any,
- 4. Under Oregon law, employees who use sick child leave on more than three separate occasions in a 12-month leave period may be required to provide medical documentation from the child's doctor to verify that the child was ill and required home care for all subsequent uses of sick child leave in the 12-month period.
- (b) Intermittent or Reduced Schedule:
  - 1. Serious Health Conditions. If medically necessary, family and medical leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced schedule. The schedule must be stated by the certifying medical professional on the Certification of Fitness for Duty form:
  - 2. Parental Leave. Intermittent leave or a reduced schedule is not allowed for the birth or adoption of a child, except to accommodate the legal process leading to the adoption of a child or the placement of a foster child.

#### 204.7 - REINSTATEMENT

Generally, an employee returning from leave will be restored to the same or an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms, unless the former position has been eliminated for bona fide business or fiscal reasons, in which case the employee may have no reinstatement rights. Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements follow the layoff provisions of their applicable agreement, non-represented employees are covered by the Polk County Personnel Rules, see Rule 15.2.

Employees who have exhausted all of their paid leave and have extended leave without pay beyond the time available under FMLA/OFLA are considered to have resigned. All health benefit payments made by Polk County will cease at the end of the FMLA/OFLA leave entitlement period

#### EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

#### Basic Leave Entitlement

LVII. Arequires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of impand. job-protected leave to eligible employees for the following reasons

- · for incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or child birth • to care for the employee's child after birth, or placement for adoption
- or foster care. to care for the employee's spouse, son, daughter or parent, who has
- 4 serious health condition, or
- for a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee's job

#### Military Family Leave Entitlements

I ligible employees whose spouse, son, daughter of parent is on covered active duty or call to covered active duty status may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain qualitying evigencies. Qualitying extgencies may include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements attending certain counseling sessions, and attending post-deployment

a regimen of continuing treatment, or meapacity due to pregnancy, or pacity due to a chrome condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment

An employee doss not need to use this feave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. I'mployees must make reasonable efforts to schedule. leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the employer's operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on in intermittent basis

#### Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave

Employees may choose or employers may require use of accrued paid leave while taking PMI. A leave. In order to use paid leave for FMI. A leave, employees must comply with the employer's normal paid leave policies

Employee Responsibilities

#### RULE 212 - VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT AND STALKING

#### 212.1 - PURPOSE

Pursuant to ORS 659A.885, this policy allows an eligible employee to take reasonable leave from employment to address documented domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking. The parent or guardian of a minor child or dependent who is the victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking may also take reasonable leave from employment to address same.

#### 212.2 - ELIGIBILITY

An eligible employee must have worked an average of more than 25 hours per week for at least 180 days immediately before the date the employee takes this leave for the purposes stated above.

#### 212.3 - QUALIFYING PURPOSES

- (a) An eligible employee may request a reasonable amount of leave as determined by the department head/supervisor for the following purposes:
  - a. To seek legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies to ensure the health and safety of the employee or the employee's minor child or dependent, including preparing for and participating in protective order proceedings or other civil or criminal legal proceedings related to domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.
  - b. To seek medical treatment for or to recover from injuries caused by domestic violence or sexual assault to or stalking of the eligible employee or the employee's minor child or dependent.
  - c. To obtain, or to assist a minor child or dependent in obtaining, counseling from a licensed mental health professional related to an experience of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.
  - d. To obtain services from a victim services provider for the eligible employee or the employee's minor child or dependent.
  - e. To relocate or take steps to secure an existing home to ensure the health and safety of the eligible employee or the employee's minor child or dependent.

#### 212.4 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

- (a) <u>Leave Banks</u>. An eligible employee who takes leave pursuant to this policy may use any paid accrued vacation leave or may use any other paid leave in lieu of vacation leave during the period of leave.
- (b) Any accrued paid leave, such as vacation, holiday time, compensatory time, personal leave days, and sick leave must be exhausted before unpaid leave is taken. Sick leave shall be used consistent with the sick leave policy under

- Personnel Rule 11,3 or collective bargaining agreements. Leave under this Act runs concurrently with FMLA/OFLA for a qualifying event,
- (c) Continuation of benefits. When leave without pay is necessary, it will be the employee's responsibility to pay their portion of health insurance premiums and optional benefits. Payments shall be submitted to Payroll by the 1st of each month. Employees should contact Payroll prior to taking leave without pay.
- (d) Recordkeeping. All records and information kept on file by Polk County Human Resources are stored separately from the employee's personnel file and are confidential. No information will be released without the express written permission of the employee, unless otherwise required by law.

#### 212.5 - REQUEST PROCEDURES

- (a) <u>Notice</u>. An eligible employee shall give reasonable advance notice of the intention to take leave for the qualifying purposes identified above, unless giving advance notice is not feasible.
- (b) <u>Certification</u>. The County will require certification, which the employee shall be required to provide in a timely manner. Certification may consist of: a copy of a police report; protective order or other evidence from a court or attorney that the eligible employee appeared in or was preparing for a civil or criminal proceeding related to domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking; documentation from an attorney, law enforcement officer, health care professional, licensed mental health professional/counselor, clergy, or victim services provider.

Please contact Human Resources for further details.

## RULE 22 - PAID LEAVE OREGON

#### 22.1 - PURPOSE

This document provides information to employees applying for Paid Leave Oregon with the Oregon Employment Department; and

Establishes a policy that allows employees to take up to 12 weeks of protected leave in a 12-month period for their own serious health condition, for the birth or adoption of a child, for the placement of a foster child, for the care of a child with a non-serious health condition; for the care of a spouse, parent, child, grandparent, spouse or domestic partner of a grandparent, grandchild, sibling or step sibling, sibling is or step sibling, sibling is or whose close association with a covered individual is the equivalent of a family member; and

Provides that upon certification by the Oregon Employment Department, the employee shall utilize leave on an incremental (full day) or full time basis. If an employee has two (2) or more qualifying events during a 12-month period, the employee is still only eligible for a total of 12 weeks of leave benefits.

## 22.2 - REQUEST PROCEDURE

Any employee requesting to participate in Paid Leave Oregon must comply with all application requirements through the Oregon Employment Department. Polk County is not responsible for approving or denying any claims made under the Paid Leave Oregon law. Polk County will comply with determinations made by the Oregon Employment Department.

## 22.3 - EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES

It is the responsibility of an employee to notify Human Resources that they have applied for Paid Leave Oregon within five (5) days of submitting their application. The employee will also be required to notify Human Resources of any decision made by the Oregon Employment Department.

If an employee's application for Paid Leave Oregon is approved by the Oregon Employment Department it will be the employee's responsibility to notify Payroll of their payments received by the Oregon Employment Department.

a) Employees who isare receiving a percentage of their regular pay from the Oregon Employment Department will be allowed to use their leave banks (sick, vacation, holiday and compensatory time) to make up the difference of their pay. Meaning if the employee receives pay from the Oregon Employment Department equal to 60% of their regular pay, they may use vacation banks to provide for the other 40% of their pay to equal 100%.

86 Polk County Personnel Rules Formatted: Font: Not Bold

b) Employees who receive any percentage of their pay from the Oregon Employment Department while on Paid Leave Oregon may choose to use any leave banks as they normally would have through FMLA/OFLA to receive 100% of their pay also from the County.

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1" + Tab after: 1.25" + Indent at: 1.25"

Formatted: Left

#### **RULE 23 - PRIVACY**

23, 1 - POLICY

There is no reasonable expectation of privacy in any aspect of your job with the County. The equipment and other areas where information and supplies are stored in the County (including your office space, desk, credenza, drawers, cabinets, bookcases, computer files, e-mail, etc. are all set up and designed to take care of the business of the County. For this reason, no employee should have any expectation of privacy in any such area. If you are not at work, or you are away from your work area, others in the County may need to and should be expected to look through your space, desk, shelves, files, computer files, etc. to find whatever is needed for business purposes. For this reason, you should not keep any personal information at the office. No space in the office may be locked except on the authority of your supervisor as to maintain the confidentiality of County business, financial, or employee records.



## Contract Review Sheet

Staff Contact: Todd Whitaker	Department: Public Works
Title: Director	Consent Calendar Date: October 4, 2023
Contractor Name: Oregon Department of Tr	ansportation
Address: 555 13th St. NE	
City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301-4178	
Effective Dates - From: May 29, 2019	Thru: <u>May 30,2025</u>
Contract Amount: \$880,071	
Competitive Quotes Specia	nal Services al/Exempt Procurement (explain below): Agreement Amendment
	igreement / unonamont
Request for Proposals  Background/Discussion:	
construct approximately 1,650 feet of continu	and Hoffman Roads. This grant will provide funding to ous sidewalks and bike lanes along Hoffman Rd. and nents on Gun Club Rd at Marigold Dr. This amendment 0, 2025.
Fiscal Impact:	
(\$704,000), leaving the county responsible for Independence has agreed to cover the mate (approx \$100,000), so the total fiscal impact	tely \$880,000. The grant award is 80% of the project cost or 20% match (\$176,000). However, the City of h for the work that will be occurring within their jurisdiction to the County will be approximately \$76,000.
Recommendation:	
Staff recommends the Board approve the an Department of Transportation for the Safe Ro	nendment to the grant agreement with the Oregon outes to Schools program.
Copies of signed contract should be sent	t to the following:
Name: Heather Chase	E-mail: chase.heather@co.polk.or.us
Name: Xao Posadas	E-mail: xao.posadas@odot.oregon.gov
Name:	E-mail:

Misc. Contracts and Agreements No. 33119

A136-G0092418

# AMENDMENT NUMBER 02 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM (SRTS) GRANT AGREEMENT Gun Club and Hoffman Rd: Sidewalk, Ramp and Crossing Improvements Polk County

This is Amendment No. 02 to the Agreement between the **State of Oregon**, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as "State" or "ODOT," and **Polk County**, acting by and through its Governing Body, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient," entered into on May 29, 2019, and Amendment No. 01, entered into on January 25, 2022.

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above shall be amended to extend the Availability of Grant Funds date, Project completion date, and revise the ODOT Contact, phone and email.

- 1. <u>Effective Date.</u> This Amendment shall become effective on the date it is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law.
- 2. <u>Amendment to Agreement.</u> Deleted information is shown in strikethrough and added information is shown in underline.
  - a. Agreement:
    - 1. **Effective Date and Availability of Grant Funds.** This Agreement is effective on the date that it is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law (the "Effective Date"). The availability of Grant Funds (as defined in section 2) and ODOT's obligation to disburse Grant Funds shall end on the earlier of the following dates (the "Availability Termination Date"):
      - (i) Five (5) Six (6) years after the Effective Date; or
      - (ii) 45 days after the Final Payment Conditions are satisfied pursuant to section 6.a.

No Grant Funds are available after the Availability Termination Date.

#### b. Exhibit A, Section B

#### **B. PROJECT KEY MILESTONES AND SCHEDULE**

The Project has eight (8) Key Milestone(s). Key Milestones are used for evaluating performance on the Project as described in the Agreement. Neither Key Milestone 1, Scoping and planning, nor Key Milestone 8, Project completion, can be changed without an amendment to the Agreement.

If Recipient anticipates either that Key Milestone 1 will require material changes or that Key Milestone 8 will be delayed by more than ninety (90) days, Recipient

shall submit a Request for Change Order, as described in Section 4(c) of the Agreement, to <a href="mailto:SRTSProgramMailbox@odot.oregon.gov">SRTSProgramMailbox@odot.oregon.gov</a> as soon as Recipient becomes aware of any possible change or delay. Recipient must submit the Request for Change Order before materially changing the project scope (Key Milestone 1) or delaying the Project completion more than 90 days (Key Milestone 8), as the case may be. Adjustments to all milestone dates must be noted in the quarterly reports.

**Table 1: Key Milestones** 

Key Milestone	Description	Estimated Due Date
1	Scoping and planning	16 weeks from Agreement Execution
2	Community Outreach	28 weeks from Agreement Execution
3	Right of Way and land acquisition	54 weeks from Agreement Execution
4	Permits	28 weeks from Agreement Execution
5	Final plans/bidding engineering documents	60 weeks from Agreement Execution
6	Construction contract award	76 weeks from Agreement Execution
7	Utilities Relocation	N/A
8	Project completion (Project must be completed within 5 6 years of agreement execution)	<del>5/30/24</del> <u>10/27/24</u>

### c. ODOT Contact (SRTS):

LeeAnne Fergason Xao Posadas

555 13<sup>th</sup> Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4178

Phone: 503-986-5805 971-718-6170

LeeAnne.Fergason@odot.state.or.us\_xao.posadas@odot.oregon.gov

3. <u>Counterparts</u>. This Amendment may be executed in two or more counterparts (by facsimile or otherwise) each of which is an original and all of which when taken

Recipient/State
Agreement No. 33119, Amendment 02

together are deemed one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.

- 4. <u>Original Agreement</u>. Except as expressly amended above, all other terms and conditions of the original Agreement are still in full force and effect. Recipient certifies that the representations, warranties and certifications in the original Agreement are true and correct as of the effective date of this Amendment and with the same effect as though made at the time of this Amendment.
- 5. <u>Electronic Signatures.</u> The Parties agree that signatures showing on PDF documents, including but not limited to PDF copies of the Agreement and amendments, submitted or exchanged via email are "Electronic Signatures" under ORS Chapter 84 and bind the signing Party and are intended to be and can be relied upon by the Parties. State reserves the right at any time to require the submission of the hard copy originals of any documents.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

Recipient/State Agreement No. 33119, Amendment 02

**THE PARTIES**, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms and conditions.

<b>POLK COUNTY</b> by and through its Governing Body.	<b>STATE OF OREGON</b> , by and through its Department of Transportation
By(Legally designated representative)  Name(printed)	Administrator
Date LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL (If	Name(printed) Date
required in Recipient's process)  By Recipient's Legal Counsel	By Safe Routes to School Program Manager
Name(printed)	Name (printed)
Date	Date



## **POLK COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT COUNTY COMMISSIONER CRAIG POPE**850 MAIN ST DALLAS, OR 97338

September 5, 2023

### **INVOICE**

	DESCRIPTION	TOTAL
0&C LITIGATION PAYMENT		\$6,660.00
8 6 3 - 4		
, Translate Line.		
Anglio Magazina		
	TOTAL DUE	\$6,660.00

Make all checks payable to AOCC
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact: DOUG ROBERTSON (541) 430-8952



#### Fwd: Litigation information

1 message

**Pope, Craig** <pope.craig@co.polk.or.us>
To: "Pineda, Nicole" <pipre>pineda.nicole@co.polk.or.us>

Wed, Sep 27, 2023 at 9:16 AM

O&C litigation fund explanation.

----- Forwarded message -----

From: **Doug Robertson** <robertsonjd44@outlook.com>

Date: Thu, Sep 7, 2023 at 8:57 PM Subject: Fwd: Litigation information

To: Craig Pope <pope.craig@co.polk.or.us>

#### Craig

Here's the followup information I mentioned I would provide in the email I sent after our meeting in Grants Pass. A hard copy of the invoice for the litigation fund is in the mail. Polk County's share is \$6,660

Doug

In 2016 the Association on O&C Counties filed a lawsuit against the Bureau of Land Management challenging it's Resource Management Plan (RMP) for the O&C lands in Western Oregon. The Bureau's RMP clearly violated the intent of the 1937 O&C Act by withdrawing over 80% of the land base from active management. The O&C Act ended the practice of over harvesting the Federal Forest lands by mandating that "all land classified as timberland shall be managed under the principle of Sustained Yield". Sustained Yield management requires that the harvest of timber not exceed the annual growth rate of the forest, thereby providing the resource for perpetuity. In 2019 DC Circuit Court Judge Richard Leon ruled in favor of the Association of O&C Counties and directed the BLM to create a new RMP consistent with the mandates in the O&C Act. In 2021, BLM appealed Judge Leon's ruling and yesterday, July 19th, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals found if favor of the BLM's appeal, overruling Judge Leon's 2019 decision. While disappointing, the Association of O&C Counties was already prepared for this outcome. AOCC is engaged with legal experts who have successfully argued similar cases before the U.S. Supreme Court. The Association is committed to seeking a final decision by the Supreme Court on this issue and is confident it will confirm what Congress clearly intended by passing the O&C Act—that all lands classified as timber lands shall be managed under the principle of Sustained Yield.

The 1937 O&C Act, also referred to as the Sustained Yield Management Act, was the first environmental legislation passed by Congress regarding the management of the Federal Forest lands. Not only has management under the O&C Act provided economic benefits and support for the Counties and Communities, but in addition has also provided a wide range of recreational activities for the public including access to a network of maintained campgrounds, hiking trails, boat ramps and other facilities. Prior to the 2016 Resource Management Plan, Sustained Yield management also provided Active measures to increase fire resiliency by working closely with fire protective organizations, maintaining access for quick fire fighting response, and engaging in active post fire management. In 1937 there 50 billion board feet of timber on the O&C land base. In the interim between 1937 and today 50 billion board feet of timber has been harvested. Today there is in excess of 73 billion board feet of timber on the O&C land base, over 50% of which is classified as old growth. Sustained Yield management works!



Craig A. Pope Polk County Commissioner

503-623-8173 office pope.craig@co.polk.or.us





## POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE \* DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174 (503) 623-1888 \* FAX (503) 623-1889

#### **MEMORANDUM**

TO:

**Board of Commissioners** 

FROM:

Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director

DATE:

September 29, 2023

SUBJECT:

New Job Specification and Wage

Wednesday - October 4, 2023 (Consent)

#### **RECOMMENDATION:**

The Board of Commissioners approve the new job specification and wage.

#### **ISSUE**:

Shall the Board approve this new job specification and wage?

#### **DISCUSSION:**

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners adopt a new job specification for an Emergency Management Coordinator. This position will be utilized to assist the Emergency Operations Manager in providing emergency assistance to the community through training and community engagement. This position will also assist in the daily duties of acting as a liaison for the Ambulance Services Advisory.

The salary range for the Discovery/Evidence Supervisor will be (035) \$4,690 - \$5,934.

#### **FISCAL IMPACT:**

No fiscal impact for FY 23-24.

## POLK COUNTY CLASS SPECIFICATION EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR

POLK COUNTY

Class Spec. Number: 762 Representation: AFSCME FLSA Status: Non-Exempt

Salary Range: 035

GENERAL STATEMENT OF DUTIES: The EMS/EM Coordinator is a dual role position that will assist in coordinating both Ambulance Service Area responsibilities and Emergency Management activities for Polk County. This includes monitoring, enforcing, and reporting on system performances from all ASA providers. The position must be able to chair a group of key stakeholders in monthly/quarterly meetings that report the performance of the EMS System to the County. This position also coordinates and supports activities related to prevention, preparedness, response, recovery and mitigation programs for Polk County's Emergency Management Department. This position will assist in coordinating Emergency Management activities outlined in the Emergency Management Performance Grant as well as report on fiscal and activities required by this grant. The EM Coordinator will assist in building a robust Emergency Operations Center team by providing specific task training to county staff members for response activities related to the operation of the County Emergency Operations Center.

<u>SUPERVISION RECEIVED:</u> Works under the direction of the Emergency Manager who assigns and reviews work for compliance with County policies and State and Federal Laws.

<u>SUPERVISION EXERCISED</u>: Supervises the Emergency Operation Center when activated and the Emergency Manager is unavailable. Responsible for supervision of assigned volunteer groups.

<u>PRINCIPAL DUTIES</u>: An employee in this classification may perform any of the following duties. However, these examples do not include all the specific tasks which an employee may be expected to perform.

- Acts as the liaison with all Ambulance Service Advisory (ASA) providers within the County.
- Provide Emergency Medical Services (EMS) System updates on a regular basis to the Emergency Manager.
- Acts as the Chair of the County's EMS System Compliance Committee.
- Acts as the Chair of the County's EMS Quality Assurance Committee
- Oversee Basic Life Support(BLS) and Advanced Life Support (ALS) continuing education compliance by each ASA
- Assist the County's designated Medical Director in developing pilot studies of expanded or new medical protocols and/or medications for use in the field
- Other duties as assigned by the EMS Administrator
- Assure all ASA Providers adhere to their ASA Agreements
- Assure all County ALS protocols are adhered to
- Develop, coordinate, implement and evaluate County emergency exercises, drills and checklists. Develop After Action Reports (AAR) and Corrective Action Plans (CAP).
- Assists the development, coordination, implementation of evaluation of County Emergency Management exercises, drills and completes After Action Reports and Corrective Action Plans.
- Develop, coordinate and host public outreach initiatives to train new County staff on preparedness and emergency response procedures.
- Develops employee and community presentations. Responsible for public outreach as

requested.

- Develop, assess and prepare reports in compliance with national standards.
- Administer and update the Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)
- Manages components of the County's multi-county Emergency Notification System. Develop plans and procedures for the system and coordinate system tests.
- Provide coordination and support during actual disaster and emergency operations from the Emergency Operations Center.
- Serve as the Emergency Operations Center Manager in the absence of the designated Manager.
- Develop and maintain website content and other communication tools regarding potential disasters and emergencies.
- Performs related duties as required.

#### EMPLOYMENT QUALIFICATIONS:

Knowledge of: the principles and methodology of emergency management practices and procedures; preservation of life and property during natural and man-made disasters; evacuation processes and shelter assessments including applicable local, state, and federal guidelines for disaster relief; emergency medical services systems; leadership qualities; organization strategies.

Ability to: comprehend, interpret, and implement applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules regulations, and policies; prepare comprehensive, clear, and concise reports, proposals, and directives; communicate effectively orally, including public speaking; develop and maintain effective working relationships with other public service agencies, and the general public; collaborate and coordinate projects with diverse groups and diverse interests.

**Skill in:** the operation of computer and its software, electronic recording equipment, public speaking and human relations.

EDUCATION, EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING: Associates degree in a field related to Emergency Medical Services or Emergency Management Services; 3 years experience as a Paramedic or higher relevant certification; 2 years in a leadership position – preferably in an EMS related field; 2 years experience working within Emergency Management situations; or an equivalent combination of education, experience and training.

<u>SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS</u>: Must possess and maintain a valid Oregon driver's license at time of hire. May be required to drive a county vehicle. Employees authorized to operate a private vehicle on County business are required to carry a valid driver's license and liability insurance minimums as outlined in ORS 806.070.

Emergency Management Coordinator - 762 Adopted 10/23